) /¢ Virginia Tobacco Region
Revitalization Commission

2024 WINTER
Committee & Comm|55|on
Two- Day Meetings

| January8-9, 2024

Delta Hotels by Marriott
Richmond Downtown

Kanawha Ballroom
555 East Canal Street
Richmond, VA



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission

2024 Winter Committee & Commission Meetings

Delta Hotels by Marriott Richmond Downtown
Kanawha Ballroom
555 East Canal Street, Richmond, Virginia

January 8 - 9, 2024
MEETING LOGISTICS
Itinerary
SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA COMMITTEE

Extensions and Modifications

INCENTIVES AND LOANS COMMITTEE

Extensions and Modifications

FULL COMMISSION

TROF Update

Financial Summary

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures & Changes
Committee Membership




I TINERARY

Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
2024 Winter Committee & Commission Two-Day Meetings
Delta Hotels by Marriott Richmond Downtown
Kanawha Ballroom
555 East Canal Street, Richmond
January 8 - 9, 2024

MONDAY, JANUARY 8, 2024

MEETING SITE
DELTA HOTELS BY MARRIOTT RICHMOND DOWNTOWN
KANAWHA BALLROOM, 555 EAST CANAL STREET, RICHMOND

2:00 P.M. SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA COMMITTEE MEETING
4:00 P.M. SOUTHERN COMMITTEE MEETING
CHECK- IN TIME: 4:00 P.M.

6:30 - 9:00 P.M. RECEPTION @ DELTA HOTELS BY MARRIOTT RICHMOND
DOWNTOWN, CAPITAL ROOM
555 EAST CANAL STREET, RICHMOND

TUESDAY, JANUARY 9, 2024

MEETING SITE
DELTA HOTELS BY MARRIOTT RICHMOND DOWNTOWN
KANAWHA BALLROOM, 555 EAST CANAL STREET, RICHMOND

7:30 - 8:30 A.M. A FULL BREAKFAST WILL BE SERVED
9:00 - 10:30 A.M. INCENTIVES AND LOANS COMMITTEE MEETING
10:30 - 11:00 AM EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING

CHECK- OUT TIME - 1200 P.M.
11:00 A.M. - 12:00 P.M. ~ FULL COMMISSION MEETING

11:45 AM. 'LUNCH MENU: PIZZA AND SALAD
SAFE TRAVEL HOMIE

" -




SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA
 COMMITTEE



“« In-Person Meeting =

AGENDA

SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA COMMITTEE

January 8, 2024 - 2:00 P.M.
Delta Hotels by Marriott Richmond Downtown

Kanawha Ballroom
555 East Canal Street, Richmond, VA 23219

The public may rémote]y participate in this meeting by accessing the following dial-in numbers: 1-434-230-0065 (toll) and
enter conference ID: _885 164 502# .

The Commission will not change the method by which it chooses to meet without providing a new meeting notice that is in
accordance with the Va. Freedom of Information Act. If problems are experienced calling in, please contact: Hannah
Franke-Fuller at (804)-894-9659 or hfranke-fuller@revitalizeva.org or Joyce Knight at (804) 894-9651.

Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable James “Will” Morefield, Chair
Call of the Roll The Honorable James Campos, Acting Executive Director
Approval of the 10/12/23 Minutes (published on website)

Public Comment

Grant Projects Ms. Sara Williams, Southwest Regional Director
Extensions and Modifications Ms. Sara Williams, Southwe;t Regional birec:or
Other Business | Myr. Stephen Versen, Depubz Director
Adjournment



FY24 Southwest Virginia Program
- Staff Summaries and Recommendations
January 8, 2024

‘The Commission received 18 applications by the Octobet 10, 2023, application deadline of the
FY24 Southwest Virginia Program. One additional application was invited for a late submission.
The applications are grouped below by investment category. The Southwest Virginia Committee
will act on these applications at its meeting scheduled for January 8, 2024, at 2:00 pm.

EE a
{ |
|
|
|

_Agribusiness

_ Requested Recommended
Req # Organization Project Title Amount Amount

Appalachian Sustainable ~ ASD Agricultural Campus Site

4190  Development Development Plan’ $39,000 $29,435

4195 Grayson County Gold Hill Farm Cidery $50,000 : $50,000
| Lee County Livestock Forage Production Initiative

4192 Association for Southwest Vitginia $525,000 $262,500

4201 Tazewell County IDA | Poﬁderosa 2 ‘ | $100,668 $100,668

' Business Development

Project Light Community

4193 City of Galax Center and Business Incubator $74,000 $74,000
Theatre Guild of Renovations and
- 4184  Buchanan County Improvements at The CAM $485,000 $317,000

i !
Other Economic Development |

/|

Appalachian Highlands Appalachian Highlands

Community Dental Community Dental Centet:
4188 Center Clinic Expansion II . $365,039 $0
' : Mount Rogers Regional Site
Mount Rogers Regional Identification and Evaluation
4196 Partnership Process $140,000 $140,000



Sites and Infrastructure

LENOWISCO Speculative Data Center
Planning District Building at Project
4189  Commission Intersection $656,416 “Tabled
LENOWISCO
Planning District 20,000 SF Building at Project
4185  Commission Intersection $800,000 $800,000
Russell County
Industrial Russell County Industrial
Development Complex Due Diligence
4197  Authority Project $112,750 $112,750
Scott County
Economic
Development Scott Conty Regional Business -
4200  Authority and Technology Patk $97,780 $97,780
Virginia Highlands Westside Development -
4198  Airport Phase II $225,000 $225,000
Toutism
Birthplace of Country Music
Museum Expansion: New
Birthplace of Countty ~ Core Exhibit Development
4191  Music and Design - $100,000 $0
Bristol Downtown Connectot:
: for Mendota Trail - Feasibility
4183  City of Bristol Study $70,000. $0
Gateways to Southwest
Friends of Southwest Vitginia: An Outdoor
4187  Vitginia Economy Recreation Plan $100,000 $55,000
Scott County
Economic '
Development Carter Fold 50th Anniversary ,
4194  Authority Celebration $80,000 $80,000
Southwest Regional
Recreation Authority Multi-
Southwest Regional State Economic Impact and
4186  Recreation Authority Marketing Initiative Withdrawn Withdrawn
Vitginia's Heritage
Music Trail: The The Crooked Road: Musical -
4199  Crooked Road Milestones $30,000 $30,000
Total (19 requests) $4,050,653 $2,374,133
2




Agribusiness

Appalachian Sustainable Development _
ASD Agricultural Campus Site Development Plan (#4190)
$39,000.00 Requested

Project Summary: Commission funds ate requested to suppott planning activities related to the
development of an agticultural campus to be located in Bristol, VA. ASD putchased the 17+ acte
propetty in September 2022 and plans to develop a multifaceted facility to setve agticultural needs
across the Southwest VA region. The campus will include a 10,000 square-foot business
development hub, 8,000 squate-foot food hub, multiple innovative agriculture demonstration sites,
greenhouses, nurseries, etc. It will also provide space for agriculture-related workforce development
and training. Commission funds will be used for contractual services for architectural and
engineering setvices to include the development of preliminary engineering and architectural reports,
detailed cost estimates, and an operating plan and financial information. The application also
requests suppott for existing personnel (CEO, Marketing Lead, and Dir. Of Communications and
Development), travel, and supplies.

Matching Funds:

e  $14,000 - National Association of State Depattments of Agﬂcultuie (apptroved)
e $25000 - Go Virginia (application intended)

Project Outputs:

e Key planning tasks will be accomplished resulting in the following:

o Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment; Preliminary Engineering and Architectural
Reportt
Line-Item Detailed Budget for construction and facility operation
Opetating Budget and Pro Forma; Detailed Equipment List and Equipment Quotes
Feasibility Study (food hub) and Economic Impact Study
Opetating Plan / Matketing Plan

©O 0O 0O

Staff Comments:

The planning suppott requested in this application will allow ASD to develop key documents
necessaty to begin to fundraise the estimated $12M of funding required for construction of the
campus. The applicant plans to develop the campus in phases and will use the deliverables of this
application to guide appropriate next steps. This is a reasonable approach to developing a
multifaceted facility that will be used for a vatiety of agricultural purposes. The application indicates
that a future application will likely be submitted to the Commission for assistance with the
implementation phase. While there ate elements of the project that may be appropriate for TRRC'’s

investment priotities, support for this planning phase should not be seen as a guarantee of future
funding,

Commission suppott for planning activities is generally limited to no more than 50% of third-party
contractual expenses. For this reason, only $29,435 of the total $39,000 request should be
. tecommended for approval. The funds requested for partial suppozt of the three existing positions



($7,815) and for supplies and matetials (81750) ate not appropriate uses of TRRC funds. The
Commission’s Funding Policies ate cleat that expenses, such as salaties, already included in an
organization’s operating budget can only be submitted as in-kind match. They are not ehglble f01
reimbutsement.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project indicates a clear model and timeline for
implementation of this planning project. The project’s budget is well-detailed but needed to be tight-
sized to cover only eligible expenses as dictated by TRRC funding policies. The project has one
commitment of match for $14,000 from NASDA and will apply to the GoVA program for the '

remainder needed. As such, we add a contingency to secure the full match to qualify for the total
award. :

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends an award of $29,435 fox 50% of third-patty
contractual expenses, contingent on secuting full matching funds for the project.

Grayson County
Gold Hill Farm Cidery (#4195)
$50,000.00 Requested

Project Summary: Funding is requested to assist Gold Hill Farm Cidery with equipment tequired
to establish a cider production facility in Grayson County. The facility will process fruit from the
owner’s farm and will also purchase ftuit from region-based growers. Commission funds will
reimburse 25% of the cost to puichase critical equipment such as an apple press, tanks, pumps, cold
storage, forklift, tractor, etc.

Matching Funds:
¢ $77,900 — Private Funds (owner) »
o  $50,000 — Potential AFID Infrastructure grant (application intended)
o $50,000 — USDA Cold Stotage Loan Program (application intended)

Project Outputs:
¢ 10 new producers will ut!hze the facility.
o An average of $11,200 of new annual direct sales revenues will be earned by producets.

o The facility will increase its annual sales revenue from $93,000 to $130,000 ($37,000
increase).

Staff Comments:

Under the Commiission’s cuttent agtibusiness investment category, privately-owned value-added
processing facilities such as this cidery, are eligible to receive funding to support 25% of total
equipment purchases. Although the owner of Gold Hill Farm Cidery has produced cider for several
years, a permanent location in Grayson County will allow the business to expand operations. Fruit
will be purchased from a vatiety of producers mcludmg small hobby growers, generational small
family orchatds, and larger orchard operations in the area. Small producers supplying 4-8 bins of
apples per season (40-80 bushels) will earn an annual revenue of $2,800-§5,600 per producer. While



this is 2 modest return, it provides supplemental income for sellets who may not currently be selling
their fruit. Larger orchard operations that supply 20 or more bins of fruit will eatn tevenues of
$14,000 ot mote.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability critetia for this project indicates a positive cost benefit suppotting the
manufacturing of an agricultural product that is growing in popularity. The venture also provides an
additional market for apple growers in the region. The project’s budget is detailed, equipment quotes
are documented, and the company proprietor is well-experienced in cider manufacturing, The
applicant provides evidence of a match commitment from the owner’s private funds but will need to
secute the temaining match to receive the full award. A third-party agreement will also be necessary
to establish performance expectations to substantiate the financial commitment that will be
provided.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends an award of $50,000 to support up to 25% of

approved equipment purchases; contingent on executive director’s approval of final thitd-
party performance agreement.

Lee County Livestock Association

Forage Production Initiative for Southwest Vitginia (#4192)
$525,000.00 Requested

Project Summary: Commission suppott is requested to conduct a cost-share program to serve
farmers in Lee, Scott, Wise, Dickenson, Buchanan, Russell, Tazewell, Washington, Smyth, Wythe,
Grayson, Catroll, and Bland Counties. The proposed program will assist participants with the
putchase of eligible forage production equipment such as no-till drills, fertilizer spreaders, hay
wrappets, testing equipment, etc. Additionally, the application will provide reimbussement for hay
storage and petmanent and temporary fencing. These programs will result in improved forage
quality and storage capability for regional producers. Cost shate payments will be limited to 33% of
eligible expenses up to a maximum $10,000 payment. The budget also requests $5,000 for program
administration expenses (tax form prepatation, postage, and workshop supplies).

Matching Funds:
o $10,000 — Vitginia Cooperative Extension (in-kind representing agent’s time administering
program)

o $1,575,757 — Program patticipant contribution (66% of putchases)

Profect Outputs:
o A minimum of 52 producets will be served by the program.
e $7,000 average new teveniue per participant



Staff Comments:
The Commission has funded multiple agricultural cost share progtams over the years including
those that provided reimbutsement for many of the elements included in the scope of the cusrent
application. Despite this, there continues to be a need for producers to make improvements to their
ptactices to allow for greater efficiencies and to increase farm revenues. When evaluating past cost
share applications, Staff has always worked to ensure equality across similar programs that may be
underway in other patis of the region. Whenever possible, reimbursement limits fot similar .
activities/programs ate maintained. The guidelines for both the SWVA Program and the Southern
VA programs limit reimbursement for cost share programs to 33%. The maximum teimbutsement
amount is dependent upon the program and generally reflects the cost of the eligible purchases. The
program presented in this application has proposed a cost shate limit of $10,000. A similar program,
currently undetway in the Southetn region, limits cost shate teimbutsement to $5,000. A recently
closed grant suppotting cost shate for forage production equipment in the SW region limited
reimbursement to $2,000 per patticipant. The approval of this app]icafion with the proposed
$10,000 limit would cteate a 51gn1ﬁcant mequahty between oppottunities in each region. Similarly,
the Commission has declined previous requests to suppott cost share for fencing. The basis for
these funding recommendations has centered around the potential for duplication with other cost
shate programs administered by other funding agencies such as DCR and USDA. Despite this
histoty, the scope of the proposed program is focused on improving forage quality to increase
grazing days resulting in better outcomes for producers. The application estimates that 2 farmer who
increases grazing by 60 days and increases hay storage is approximately $15,000 annually. These
methods require fencing improvements to allow fot rotational grazing. A draft of the cost share
program guidelines includes a requitement that fencing must be used to promote forage utilization

. and growth. A plan for the use of the fencing must be approved by the local Extension Office. This
requirement helps to address previous concerns about overlap with othet programs.

It is often difficult to estimate the populatity of new cost shate programs, Previous cost share grants
have closed with substantial balances remaining. Conversely, other programs have proven to be

- exitemely popular and have quickly obligated all available funds resulting in a waitlist documenting
ongoing interest. To manage the uncertainty of actual demand, and to avoid unnecessarily ob]igating-
this Committee’s limited funds, previous awards have been made for a reduced amount. This award,
genetally half of the otiginal request, allows the program to gauge interest. Once the initial awatd is
fully obligated, and if there is a waitlist of potential applicants, a subsequent application may be
submitted fot additional funding. This approach appeats to be suitable for this application.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability ctiteria for this project indicates that it is blghiy achievable. Staff
recommendations reflect a right-sizing of the project budget to stay in line with TRRC precedent,
bringing the maximum payment down to $5,000 per participant. These farmers are leveraging their
own funds against this cost-share program at a rate higher than 50%. This project provides excellent
benefit for the cost.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends an award of $262,500 to support cost share
payments for 33% of total expenditures up to a $5,000 limit for each participant.



Tazewell County IDA
Ponderosa 2 (#4201)
$100,668 Requested

Project Summaty: Commission funds will be used to assist Blue Ridge Butchety, the opetator of
the soon to be constructed Tazewell County meat ptocessing facility Blue Ridge Butchely will lease
the facility from Tazewell County through an agreement that requires the business to cquip the
facility. At this time equipment purchases are expected to total $402,672. The proposed grant funds
will reimburse 25% of this amount ($100,668).

Matching Funds:
e $302,004 — Blue Ridge Butchery (private financing)

Project Outpufs; |
e A new USDA inspected meat processing facility will be established.

Staff Comments:

This application was submitted after the pmgtam s October 10 deadline atthe invitation of the SWVA
Committee duting the Octobet 11™ meeting. At this same meeting, the Committee recommended an
award of $979,000 to suppott 50% of the County’s cost to construct the facility. ‘The project, a public/
private partnership, will result in the establishment of a new meat processing facility in Tazewell
County. The 7500 SF facility will contain two processing lines and will process beef, pork, lamb, and
chicken. This partnership is a unique and creative solution to increasing processing capacity in the
tegion.

During review of the previous application, Staff noted concerns related to Blue Ridge Butchery’s
financial obligation to the project. In addition to eqmppmg the facility the operator will also be
responsible for all operating expenses. Although there is little doubt that the faclhty will quickly
establish a strong customer base due to the enotmous demand for additional processing capacity, the
financial information provided with the application mdlcated that operating capital will likely be an
issue during the first year.

The RFP for this program can suppott the establishment of both publicly/non-profit owned, as well
as privately-owned, value-added processing facilities. Publicly owned facilities ate eligible for grants of
up to 50% of capital (facility and equipment) expenses. Support for ptivately owned facilities is limited
to 25% of equipment putchases. The application approved in October supported only Tazewell’s
pottion of the project. The cutrent application presents an opportunity for the Commission to assist
the private operator by teducing its start-up opetating costs. Both the Commission and Tazewell
County have a vested interest in the success of Blue Ridge Butchery. T'o futther suppost the business’s
launch, Tazewell has agreed to waive lease payments for the first 6 months of operation. These effotts
will help ensure that the business begins operations in a stronger financial position.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability ctiteria indicates that this pm;ect involves reliable, bonafide partners with
the capacity.and expertise to complete and sustain the project. The project lowers the statt-up costs
for Blue Ridge Butchety as they get this high-demand, desperately needed facility off the ground,
which will help them achieve additional potential for sustainability. A draft third-party agreement

-10-



was included with the proposal to establish expectations for perfotmahce. It is anticipated that Blue
Ridge Butchery will see high demand for its setvices, however, they must remain cognizant of
potential need for working capital/gap financing.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends an award of up to $100,668 to support 25% of
equipment purchases; contingent on securing the necessary matching funds, and the TRRC
executive ditectot’s apptoval of a final third-patty performance agteement.

[ .
' Business Development

PN

City of Galax

Project Light Community Center and Business Incubator (#4193)
$74,000.00 Requested

Project Summary: The funding requested in this application will support last dollar expenses
associated with the redevelopment of vacant, blighted, building located in downtown Galax. Once
complete, this multiputpose facility will contain 10 incubator office spaces to suppott the -
development of new small businesses. The building will also contain a commercial kitchen and

- conference space which will be available for users to rent on an as needed basis. Although the Galax
IDA will own the building, it will be leased to God’s Storehouse Soup Kitchen. This non-profit
otganization will utilize the kitchen to provide meals to food insecute residents in the area. The
community center will also provide space for literacy education, addiction recovery, and recovery to
work training setvices. Commission funds will be used for property improvements including
window teplacement and patking/ sidewalk improvements.

Matching Funds:
e  $500,000 — Appalachian Region Commission (approved)
e $1,000,000 — DHCD Industtial Revitalization Fund (apptovéd)
e  $339,270 — City of Galax/ Galax Industtial Development Authotity (approved)
e  $60,000 — USDA Rural Development (application pending)

Project Outputs:
o Creation of 9315 sq. ft. multiputpose space with commercial kitchen, dining facilities, and 10
business incubator spaces.
e 16 new businesses will utilize the facility.
e 4new jobs will be created with an average wage of $20/hour.

Staff Comments: : -

This request provides last dollar support for the otherwise fully funded project. The window
replacement and sidewalk and parking lot improvements were removed from the project when
construction bids wete returned over budget. A contract for the approximately $2M project has
been signed with construction scheduled to begin in late 2023. If the project proceeds on schedule it
will be completed in eight months. Although the soup kitchen, addiction, and recovery services, etc.
are not ptiority funding areas for the Commission, the creation of new incubator space aligns well

-11-



with this program’s Business Development investment category. The application provided excellent
documentation of the demand for additional incubator space in the Galax area, Other facilities, such
as the Crossroads Institute, are at capacity and unable to accommodate additional businesses. The

application also provided letters from several potential businesses who are interested in using the
newly cteated space.

~ The applicant recently contacted Staff about a potential change in scope for the application. Sections
of the building’s rtooms need repair. These repairs ate of higher priotity to the overall project
compared to the window replacement and sidewalk and paving improvements. Staff do not have a
particular preference for the use of Commission funds since it contributes to the rehabilitation of
the overall property.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key financial viability assesstnent critetia indicates a modest request to complete a capital
project that will result in business development oppottunities for the community. The project’s
budget is detailed, teasonable, appropriately scaled to the project, and provides for sufficient
capacity to implement this demonstration program. In addition, the project has over 50% match
committed at the time of application. The outcomes represent a good financial investment in terms
of projected cost benefit.

While the City of Galax is the applicant, it was discovered during the viability review that the
potential lessee of the IDA-owned building is pending inactive/not in good standing with the State
Corporation Commission, which could adversely affect the lessce’s ability to conduct business in the
future if not remedied.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends an award of $74,000 to support property
improvements for Project Light conditioned upon the Grant’s Directos’s approval of a final
project scope identifying the use of Commission funds, and God’s Stotehouse Soup Kitchen
achieving good standing with the State Corporation Commission.

Theatre Guild of Buchanan County
Renovations and Improvements at The CAM (#4184)
$485,000.00 Requested

Project Summaty:

Commission funds are requested fot property improvements to the Community Arts Mainstage
(CAM) Theatet in Grundy, VA. The grant will help The CAM continue to develop into a fully

- functoning community theater and multi-purpose venue. The Theatre, which opened in 2021, is
located in a former industrial building,

-12-



Matching Funds:
o $79,000 - Joe Gary Street (building donation — in-kind)
o $188,000 — USDA Community Facilities grant (approved)
o  $15,000 — Buchanan County Board of Supetvisots (approved)
e $35,000 — Theatre Guild of Buchanan County, Inc. {approved)

Project Outputs:
¢ Unduplicated attendance will increase from 138 to 295 (157 new)

®  Annual direct revenue will increase from $81,911 to §119,677 ($89,000 new visitor spending
in the area)

e 3 new jobs will be cteated.

Sraff Comments:
The Theatte’s impact on the Town of Grundy and surtounding ateas is well documented in the
- application. Numerous letters of support from nearby businesses were provided, each describing
how the Theatte has positively impacted theit operations. These ranged from vendots such as food
trucks and catesers that have provided dining opportunities for CAM visitors to local merchants
who have provided goods and setvices to the CAM. These letters ate evidence of the project’s ability
to serve as a catalyst for continued growth for the Grundy community. The marketing plan provided
with the application includes a section focused on targeting toutists visiting the area’s ATV trails. A
Iettet of suppott provided by Southern Gap Outdoor Adventute describes a plan to partner with the
CAM to offer discounted tickets and ticket packages to customers. This creative partnership will
allow the Theatre, and its associated small businesses, to capture visitor spending. "The number of
toutism businesses in Buchanan County is expected to double over the next thiee yeats, cteating
additional opportunities for partnerships.

The Theatre, which opened in 2021, is located in a former industrial building. The building was
putchased by a private owner for the putpose of establishing the CAM. Since 2021 multiple capital
imptovement projects, totaling $257,739, have been completed. The building, which was recently
appraised for $246,000, has been donated to the CAM and is included in the application’s matching
funds. Because of the Commission’s limits on in-kind match (no more than 25% of the total match
can be in-kind) only a portion of this amount can be allowed. A revised budget submitted duting the
review process lists $238,000 of acceptable cash match. These funds wili be combined with the
TRRC grant to suppott building renovation and equipment costs. The maximum amount of in-kind

match allowed fot the project is §79,000 resulting in a maximum TRRC award recommendation of
$317,000. ‘

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability ctitetia for this project revealed a well-designed pioposal with the potential
for drawing additional customers and investments into this small community. The project’s budget is
adequately detailed and documented by cutrent quotes. It did, however, need to be right sized to
limit the in-kind match percentage to 25% as dictated by TRRC funding policies. Match for the
project was fully committed at time of proposal. The otganization has sufficient expertise, ¢apacity
and resources to carty out the project, and the staff feels assured of its viability.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends an award of $317,000.

10
-18-



Other Economic Development

Appalachian Highlands Community Dental Center (#4188)
Appalachian Highlands Community Dental Center: Clinic Expansion 11

$365;039-00 Requested
$178,070 Amended Request

Project Summatry: Commission suppott is requested to facilitate the putchase of an Ivoclar Dry
Milling System (PrograMill® PM7) used to digitally produce dentures and dental veneets at a cost of -
$20 pet run. Cutrently these items cost $200 per run to produce. The equipment is included in the
scope of the approximately $1.2M Clinic Expansion Phase II construction ptoject. The Clinic has

treated mote than 13,000 uninsured and underinsured dental patients in Southwest Vitginia since it
opened in 2020.

Matching Funds:
e $75,000 - Skewes Family Foundation (approved)
e $100,000 — Thompson Charitable Trust (approved)
e $3,070 — BF Foundation

Project Outputs:

e 14,000 patient appointment will be provided annually (5,300 increase)
e 10 dental residents will be based at the facility (increase of 5)

Staff Comments:

The otiginal budget requested 100% support for the Ivoclar equipment. The grant was to be
matched with funding for constructing an expansion to the facility. Construction is now complete.
Commission policy tequites that matching funds be spent concurrently with TRRC funds, within the
approved grant period. For this reason, the funds used to complete construction are not eligible to

match this request. As a tesult, the applicant submitted a modified budget amendmg the request to
50% of the equipment cost.

While the amended budget allows the application to meet the Commission’s 1:1 match requitement,
the scope of the project is outside the stated investment strategies of this program. The primary
objective of the project is to offer additional dental setvices to the region. While this is certainly a
worthy, and much needed, objective it does not align with the Commission’s Strategic Plan which
requites that economic development projects result in the creation of new jobs and additional capital
investment. The applicant was able to provide anecdotal evidence that, upon completion of their
residency, dental residents have remained in the region. Of the first fifteen dental resident graduates,
two remained in the region. Three of the cuttent classes’ seven residents have been interviewed
locally. While this is a positive result for a region that desperately needs additional dental care
providers, the application did not provide tangible documentation that tecruitment is a focus of the
project ot that these dentists would not have located in the region tegatdless of their residency. The
proposed use of Commission funds does not directly result in the recruitment of new dentists to the
region although an inditect link between the residencies and recruitment may exist. Ultimately this

11



- application does not align with this program’s objectives and Staff is unable to provide a positive
funding recommendation. - )

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project reveals that the budget is clearly described and
soutces for 50% match are identified, and the deliverables of the project are achievable. However, it
is the stafPs opinion that the outcomes defined for this proposal will not provide an adequate retutn
on investment for Commission funds in terms of achieving economic development objectives.

-Staff Recommendation; Staff recommends no awatd.

Mount Rogers Regional Partnetship

Mount Rogers Regional Site Identification and Evaluation Process (#4196)
$140,000.00 Requested. ' '

Project Summary: Mount Rogers Regional Partnership requests funding to suppozt a regional site
study to identify properties that ate suitable for future economic development. The study will focus
primarily on latge sites of 100 actes ot larger. Developable sites of this size are vety limited in
SWVA region. The study will examine locations in the MRRP’s service area (Bland, Casroll, -
Grayson, Smyth, Wythe Counties and the City of Galax). Ten developable sites will be identified at
the conclusion of the study.

Matching Funds:
e $140,000 - GOVA (pending)
e $49,250 — MRRP staff contributions (in-kind)

Profect Outputs:
o " Regional site study will be completed.
e 10 potential sites will be identified.

Staff Comments:

The lack of large, developable, industtial sites throughout the region is a well-documented issue. The
MRRP service region is fortunate to have three industrial patks with available sites (Wildwood
Commetce Patk, Progress Patk, and Wildwood). These parks are strategically located and provide
excellent access to utilities and transpottation systems. As a result, cach receives significant interest
from prospects. Once these sites ate occupied, the MRRP region will lack site inventory and will be
limited in its ability to continue to attract industries to the region. Large sites of this scale ate often
very difficult to develop in SWVA due to topogtaphic constraints. Although the proposed site study
will focus on identifying ten latge sites of at least 100 acres it is possible that smaller sites may also
need to be considered. The application states that the study will include input from utility pattners,
local representatives, VEDP and other economic development otganizations.

12
~15-—



This application provides a logical approach to developing new industrial sites withing the MRRP
setvice region. Due to the popularity of the existing propexties, it is important that the study
proceeds in a timely manner. The project team plans to issue an RFP for consulting services in

January and hope to complete the selection process the following month. The study will be
complete within 12 months.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability ctiteria for this project indicates a clear model and timeline for
implemeritation of this planning project. The project’s budget is well-detailed and backed up by
cutrent quotes. The applicant has an application pending with the GoVA program for the 1:1 match,
As such, we add a contingency to secute the full match to qualify for the total award. It is the staff’s
estimation that this project is viable and an effective use of Commission funds.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends an award of $140,000 to support 50% of the cost
of a tegional site study, contingent on securing full matching funds for the project.

i3
-16~



[
' Sites and Infrastructure

LENOWISCO Planning District Commission

Speculative Data Center Building at Project Intersection (#4189)
$656,416.00 Requested

Project Summary: Commission support is tequested to construct a shell building designed to
suppott a data center operation at Project Intersection. This property is owned by the Lonesome
Pine Regional Industrial Facilities Authority (LPRIFA) which includes Lee, Wise, Scott, and
Dickenson Counties and the City of Notton. The proposed 40,000 SF “Spec Data Center Building”
will allow regional economic development staff to offer data center prospects an option for quick
occupancy and avoid the longer development times that may be a factor at competing sites.

Matching Funds:

e $1,200,000 — Virginia Enetgy Abandoned Mine Land Economic Revitalization Progtram
(AMLER) — application filed.

Project Outputs:
e A 20,000 SF building will be constructed on Pad 1B.

Staff Comments:

This request, to suppott the construction of a shell building on Pad 1B, will utilize site development
work proposed undet anothet application (#4185) also submitted to this funding round. Although
the building will be constructed to meet the needs of data centet prospects, the design and level of
build out will also provide flexibility to setve a light manufacturing user. Because of the lack of
available propertties in the region it is probable that, if constructed, this building will successfully be
marketed to prospects. During review of the application Staff learned that a decision for the
AMLER funding is likely several months away. In addition to providing the majority of funding for
this project, the AMLER grant will also be used for engineering and NEPA (National
Environmental Protection Act) review expenses. These activities will be required early in the process
befote construction can begin. For this teason, it would be premature to commit Commission funds

at this time. A mote approptiate approach is to table this application so that it can be acted upon
once a decision on the AMLER funding is available.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A teview of key viability criteria for this project reveals a well-defined budget and plan for
developing a speculative building in Southwest Vitginia targeted for data centers. The Commission
has fiot suppotted this kind of speculative building in the past, but if prospects could be identified,
that would reduce the risk associated with the project. The project’s budget is supported by a current
cost estimate; howevet, the project hinges on securing the AMLER funding needed for the
preliminaty engineeting work. It is the staff’s estimation that it is too eatly in the process to
determine the viability of this project.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends that this request be tabled.

14
_1 7_



LENOWISCO Planning District Commission
20,000 SF Building at Project Intersection (#4185)
$800,000.00 Requested

Project Summary: Funding is requested to support the development of a 20,000 SF building on
Pad 1A in the Project Intersection regional industtial patk in Norton, VA, The PDC has submitted
the application on behalf of the Lonesome Pine Regional Industrial Development Authority, the
ownet of the site. The proposed building is tequired to meet the needs of a prospective light
manufactuting business that has expressed interest in locating at Project Intersection. Commission
funds will be used for site development expenses including final site grading, asphait, and concrete.

"The site development completed as a result of this project will also suppott future expansion on Pad
1B to accommodate an additional 40,000 SF building,

Matching Funds: ‘
e $3,160,000 — Virginia Coalfield Economic Development Authotity loan (apptoved)

Project Outputs:

e Site Development, including the construction of an access road and other infrastructute, will
be completed for Padl to setve Pad 1A and 1B.

¢ A 20,000 SF building will be constructed on Pad 1A. A second $40,000 SF futute building
can also be accommodated on this site on Pad 1B.

e A current prospect will locate to the site resulting in the creation of a minimum of 60 jobs

with an average salary of $53,458. The project will result in $3,650,000 of new private capital
investment. '

Staff Comments:

The development of a building on Pad 1A is critical to the successful recruitment of a cutrent
prospect to the site. A $3,160,000 VCEDA loan has been approved and will be used for site
development, building construction, and A&E fees related to site development and construction.
Duting review of this application, Staff questioned why other state funds, such as the VDOT Access
Road Program were not included in the budget. The application stated that the timeline for the
VDOT funding would exceed the prospect’s requirement to have the building ready for occupancy
no latet than January 2025. The funds requested in this application represent the final piece of

project funding that, if approved, will allow site development and construction to proceed
immediately.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project indicates an ambitious implementation plan and
timeline to land an identified imminent prospect. The project’s budget is appropriately scaled and
suppotted by a cuttent estimate. The organization has sufficient capacity to catry out the project.
The County has 50% matching funds pending at time of application. It is the staff’s assessment that
the project is financially viable and a sound investment for the Commission if full matching funds
for the project can be secused.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends an award of $800,000, contingent upon
acquisition of full matching futids to support the project.

15
~18-~



Russell County Industrial Development Authority

Russell County Industtial Complex Due Diligence Project (#4197)
$112,750.00 Requested

Project Summaty: Commission suppott is requested for 50% of due diligence and design costs for
the Russell County Industtial Complex. An application will be-submitted to VEDP’s Vitginia
Business Ready Site Progtam fot matching funds. VEDP’s Site Characterization Program currently
classifies the site as Tier 2. Completion of due diligence will result in reclassification to Tier 3.

Matching Funds:
e  $112,750 = VEDP Virginia Business Ready Sites Program (application intended)

Project Outputs:
o Reclassification of site to Tier 3

¢ Completion of Due Diligence Repott to include preliminary geotechnical exploration &
teport; topographic survey; phase 1 environmental site assessment; WOUS delineation &
determination; cultural resoutces review; threatened & endangered sp'ecies ieview;
preliminary engineering study/master plan; and flood study and letter of map change.

Staff Comments:

This is a reasonable request for due diligence wotk for one of the laggest industtial sites in the
SWVA region. The Commission has supported similar costs for numetous other sites in the region.
This program requites that projects that suppott the development of industrial sites must result in an
increase in the site’s Tier classification. That requitement will be accomplished as a result of the
completion of the Due Diligence Repott which will allow the site to increase from Tier 2 to Tier 3.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability critetia for this project indicates a positive cost benefit supporting a high
priotity site for the region. The project’s budget is detailed, reasonable, appropriately scaled to the
project, and provides for sufficient capacity to catty out the planned work. The applicant intends to
make a request to the VEDP’s VBRSP program for the 50% match commitment. It is the staff’s
assessment that the project is financially viable and a sound investment for the Commission if full
-matching funds for the project can be secured.

Staff Recommendation: Staff yecommends an award of $112,750 for 50% of contractual
expesnses, contingent upon acquisition of full matching funds to support the project.

16
—-19~—



Scott County Economic Development Authority

Scott County Regional Business and Technology Park (#4200)
$97,780.00 Requested

Project Summaty: Funding is requested for 50% of due diligence costs for the Scott County
Regional Business and Technology Park. This 64-acte site, located in Duffield, VA, is currently
classified as Tiet 2 according to VEDP’s Site Characterization. Completion of due diligence will
allow the site to advance to Tiet 4+.

Matching Funds:
o $97,780 — VEDP Vitginia Busmess Ready Sites Program (apphcatlon intended)

Pro;ect Outputs.
¢  Reclassification of site to Tier 4+

¢ Completion of due diligence activities to include sutveying and engineering services
(Boundary Survey, Topogtaphic Sutrvey, Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment, Waters of
the US delineation, Threatened and Endangered Species review, Pteliminaq} Geotechnical
report, and a Preliminary Engineering Report.

Staff Comments:

This request is similat to several others that have been supported by the Comumussion. These grants
typically reimbutse 50% of the contractual services related to the due diligence activities. The
Completion of due diligence is a relatively low-cost activity that allows existing industtial sites to
advance their VEDP Tier ranking. This particulat site will advance to Tier 4-+.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project reveals a detailed and reasonable budget
documented by a current quote. It 1s appropriately scaled to the project and provides for sufficient
capacity to catty out the planned work. The applicant intends to make a request to the VEDI’s
VBRSP program for the 50% match commitment. It is the staff’s assessment that the project is

financially viable and a sound investment for the Commission if full matching funds for the project
can be secured. '

Staff Recommendation: Staff rtecommends an award of $97,870 for 50% of contractuat
expenises, contingent upon acquisition of full matching funds to suppott the project.

: 17
-20—~



Virginia Highlands Airport
Westside Development - Phase IT (#4198)
$225,000.00 Requested

Project Summaty: Commission funds are requested to support engineering design services related
to an expansion project for the aitport. Additional taxiways and hangars, large enough to
accommodate latge business and cotporate aircraft, are needed. Commission funds will be used to
suppott 50% of the cost of design setvices including, surveying, geotechnical investigation, drainage
design, pavement design, erosion and sediment control design, lighting and electrical design
construction phasing, and review agency coordination. This information will be used to prepare
construction documents needed to bid the construction phase of the project.

Matching Funds:
e $225000 - Washington County (approved}

Profect Outputs:

e Design services will be completed tesulting in construction documents including project
plans and specifications.

Staff Comments: _

Although the Commission has histotically listed airports under its “low priority” funding categoty,
one previous award ($300,000) was apptoved in 2015 to suppott a runway extension at VJI (Virginia
Highlands Aitpost). This request will suppott the engineeting/ design phase of the project which is a
ctitical first step that must be completed before the larger, more expensive, construction phase can
begin, The curtent Westside Expansion project is estimated to cost ~$10M to construct.

The application notes that the airport has experienced significant growth over the past 20 years and
has received $45M in investments over the past decade. It sexves a critical role for the local business -
community. There are currently 67 aircraft based at the aitport. This includes 8 jets which conttibute
$371,000 in annual propetty tax revenue for the County. The proposed expansion will increase the
availability of latge hangar sites for business and cotporate aircraft which, in tutn, increases the
economic impact of the aitport for Washington County and the surrounding region. Each new
cotporate aitcraft genesates a minimum of $120,000 in annual sales revenue and §50,000 in annual
propetty tax revenue, Cuttent users may decide to upgrade to larger aircraft which will also result in
increased tax tevenue and fuel sales. These are impressive figures that document the Airport’s

important role in meeting a supportive, but critical, mﬁasttuctule need for regional businesses and
industties.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability critetia for this project teveals a detailed and reasonable budget
documented by a current quote. It provides for sufficient capacity to catty out the design and
planning wotk. The applicant has fully committed matching funds in hand. Tt is the staff’s
assessment that the project is financially viable and a sound investment for the Commission.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends an award of $225,000 to support 50% of
contracted design setvices.

13
—21-



fTourism

Birthplace of Country Music (#4191)

Birthplace of Country Music Museum Expansion: New Core Exhibit
Development and Design
$100,000.00 Requested

Project Summary: Commission funds are requested to suppott the content development and
design of the new core exhibit to be installed in the Birthplace of Country Music Museum
Expansion. The expansion will increase the size of the overall museum property to 41,000 SF and
will add 3,000 SF of new cote exhibit space. BCM will contract with Hillmann & Carr for the design
phase ($190,000). An additional $35,000 will be spent on content development including stipends
and travel for members working on the project. In January 2023, the project received a $500,000
awatd from the Commission for renovation of the expansion.

Matching Funds:
e $50,000 — Genan Foundation (approved)
e $75,000 -- Vitginia Museum (application filed)

Project Outputs:
e Cote exhibit design will be completed.

Staff Comments:

Since 2004 the Commission has provided nearly $4.6M to support the development of the
Birthplace of Countty Music Museum. The majority of this amount ($4.1 M) assisted with the
establishment and construction of the existing Museum space. Over the past 10 years the Museum
has attracted thousands of visitors, including an impressive total of guests from national and
international markets. The expansion of the Museum will ensure that visitots continue to expetience
compelling and engaging content through the addition of new exhibits. The current total project
cost, including exhibits, is approximately $4.3M. Several private foundations have committed
funding for the project and approximately $3M of Historic Tax Credits and New Market Tax Credits
will be used for renovation activities. A pottion of the tax credits are still pending.

The design of exhibits appeats to be a logical next step and is necessary to move the project
forwatd. The application notes it is important to complete exhibit design to ensure the exhibit space
is built out with the appropriate infrastructure to support the design. The application estimates that
exhibit development and design will take a year to complete.

The $500,000 grant approved a year ago is evidence of the Commission’s strong support for the
expansion project and is a significant award given this Committee’s limited funds. It appears that the
2023 grant, approved for renovation expenses, may not be utilized for quite some time. Commission
grants ate intended to be spent within three years of the award date. Because the timeframe for
spending the existing award is unclear, the most suitable approach is to allow BCMM to repurpose
up to $100K of the existing award for exhibit design. This will allow the project to move forward in
a tangible way within the approved grant period. :

19
=22~



Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria for this project indicates a well- designed implementation plan and
timeline for implementation fot a key regional tourism asset. The ptoject’s budget is supported by a
current estimate. Half of the requited 50% matching funds ate in hand, and an application for the
remainder has been filed with another granting organization. While this situation would normally
result in a positive financial viability assessment, we are also considering that the applicant has a
recent award that is still unspent after one year. It is the staff’s assessment that a more viable
approach to completing the ptoject would be to reputpose a portion of the existing award to ensute
‘timely usage of the applicant’s cuttent Commission award.

Sraff Recommendation: Staff secommends no award.

City of B1°15t01

Bristol Downtown Connector for Mendota' Trail - Feasibility Study (#4183)
$70,000.00 Requested

Project Summary: Funding is requested to support approximately 50% of the cost of a Feasibility
Study for the Bristol Connectot project which will connect the Mendota Trail to Downtown Bristol.
The study is expected to identify existing conditions and to provide a phasing/ funding strategy fot
implantation, develop connector: alternative routes, and suggest crossing itnprovements. The
applicant will utilize this information to pursue funding for the implementation (constructxon) phase
_ of the project. The total cost of the feasibility study is approximately $160K.

Matching Funds:
o  $70,000 — Appalachian Regional Commission (application intended for spring 2024)
s $10,000 — Dt. and Mts. Bob Mueller (approved)
s  $10,000 — Bristol Chamber of Commesrce (approved)

Project Outputs:
o A feasibility study, with an lrnplementatton plan, will be completed.

Staff Comments:

The Mendota Trail Master Plan, completed in 2021, identifies the need for a feasibility study to

_ explore the development of a multimodal (pedestrian/ bicycle) corridor to connect the Bristol
Trailhead of the Mendota Trail to downtown Bristol. When complete, the approximately 2.7-mile
trail extension will allow usets to access lodging, dining, and retail amenities available in the
downtown atea, The connection of the trail to these amenities is critical to the project’s potential to
attract visitors. Despite this potential, it is difficult to determine the true likelihood that the
Connector will result in the attraction of new visitots from national or intetnational markets which is
a requirement for tourism projects under this progmm s cutrent RFP. The project seems mote likely
to serve local tesidents or tourists who are already visiting the region for other teasons. Additionally,
matching funds ate largely uncommitted. A decision on the intended ARC application will be sevetal
months away. Given the uncettain outcome of this application, which serves as direct match to the
TRRC request, it is prematute to commit Commission resources to the project.

20
-23-



Fmanc:a] Viability Assessment: :

A review of key viability ctiteria for this project reveals a budget supported by a current estimate that
gives a range of potential study cost. The bulk of the required 1:1 matching funds must be requested
‘from ARC in Spring 2024, which will considetably delay the proposed timeline included in the
proposal as a decision is anticipated. It is unknown as to whether the applicant has apptoached other
funding sources for trails and tourism projects. It is the staff’s assessment that the financial viability
of the project can be better assessed once the major matching funding source has come to a

decision, and the applicant can reseatrch and identify additional sources to approach for funding.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends no award.

Friends of Southwest Virginia (#4187)

Gateways to Southwest Vitginia: An Outdoor Economy Rec1ea.tlon P]aﬂ
$100,000.00 Requested

Project Sutﬁmaly: Funds ate tequested to develop the Lenowisco Outdoor Recreation Mastet
Plan. This effort will build upon previous outdoor recteation initiatives, including the High Knob
Master Plan, but will specifically focus on communities near to the Tennessee and Kentucky state
lines. A portion ($200,000) of a tecent Appalachian Regional Commission Area Development
Award (total award $300,000) will provide match for the project. The scope of the TRRC
application is limited to only the Lenwisco QOutdoor Recreation Master Plan element of the project.
Commission funds ate proposed to be used for Personal Services (§43,000) to provide partial
support for three positions, the Ditector of Matketing, Director of Finance and Administration, and
the Director of Pastnership and Qutreach, over a 15-month period. Matching funds fot these
positions, as well as the Executive Directot’s salary, total $70,300 with much of this amount.
provided by the applicant as an in-kind match. Contractual services, including the development of
the strategic ($40,000) and marketing and publication of the plan ($15,000) and travel (§2,000) will
also be suppotted under the TRRC grant. These elements are matched entirely with ARC funds.

at

Matching Funds:
o $200,000 — pottion of Appalachian Regional Commission multi-state awatd (approved)
e  $37,000 — Friends of Southwest Virginia (in-kind)

Profect Outputs:
e The Lenowisco Qutdoor Recteation Master Plan will be completed.

Staff Comments:

Since 2014 the Commission has awatded neatly $1M to suppott the growth of the Friends of SWVA
otganization and to facilitate the development of numerous initiatives focused on developing the

* region’s toutism economy. These initiatives have often included the development and promotion of
outdoor recreation opportunities. The cutrent request builds upon these previous investments by
creating a master plan that will allow localities adjacent to the Tennessee and Kentucky borders, Lee

21
24~



Scott, and Wise Counties, to explote multi-state projects. The potential for cross-border tourism
development fits well with this program’s requirement that tourism projects result in visitation from
national matkets. The creation of this master plan will ensure that these projects are developed with
‘the goal of drawing visitots actoss state lines resulting in a positive economic impact for the region.

Several previous TRRC grants have provided funding for operating expenses including salary
suppott fot vatious positions. The budget ptesented with the current application requests
reimbussement for three existing staff positions. Commission policy limits suppott for salaries to
only newly created positions, during a start-up period of no more than three years. Both the
Matketing Director and the Ditector of Pattnership and Qutreach salaries have been reimbursed
under previous TRRC awatds, while the salary of the Ditector of Finance has been submitted as
match for these grants. At this time, it is no longer appropriate for these positions, and other related
_operating costs, to be supported by a TRRC grant. Commission support for this application should

be limited to only the third-party contractual expenses related to the development of the Master
Plan.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability critetia for this project indicates that it is achievable. Staff
tecommendations reflect a tight-sizing of the project budget to stay in line with TRRC funding
policies. Required 1:1 match is in hand. It is the staff’s assessment that the project is financially
viable and a sound investment for the Commission, as it will identify outdoor recreational assets and
oppottunities as a strategy to expand the toutism economy in the region.

Staff Recommendation: Staff tecommends an award of $55,000 to support third party
contractual expenses related to the development, marketing, and publication of the
Lenowisco Outdoor Recreation Master Plan.

Scott County Economic Development Authority
Carter Fold 50th Anniversary Ce]ebmﬂon (#4194)
$80,000.00 Requested

Project Summary: The applicant requests Commission suppott for the Caster Family Fold, a well-
known music venue in Scott County which will celebrate its 50™ anniversaty this yeat. The requested
grant will be used to support performance fees ($40,000) for special performances to be held
monthly between Aptil and November 2024. The remainder of the request ($40,000) will be used
for marketing efforts. Matching funds from private sponsors and Vitginia Toutism Cmporanon will
fund the remainder of the cost of the performance fees and other expenses. These efforts, in
addition to celebrating the 50" anniversaty, ate intended to introduce the venue to new audiences
and to increase visitation, which declined during the pandemic.

Matching Funds:
¢  $60,000 — Private Business Donations ($21,000 cusrently commltted remainder to be raised)
‘s $20,000 - Virginia Tourism Cotporation grant (to be submitted January 2024)

22
—25—~



Project Outputs:

s 29,440 visitots are expected to visit as a tesult of the special performances and additional
matketing efforts. This is an increase of 8,840 over current visitation.

e Visitor spending in the region will increase by $690,000.

Staff Comments:

The Catter Family Fold is one of the most well-known music venues in the region. Over the past 50
yeats the venue has grown both its facility, which now seats over 800 attendees, and its popularity.
Thousands of visitors, including those from multiple states and countries, have attended
petformances at the venue. The proposed project celebrates the success of the Carter Family Fold
while presenting an opportunity to increase visitation. Like many other live performance venues,
attendance decteased as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. The lack of performance revenues

negatively impacted the Fold’s financial situation and attendance remains below pre-pandemic
numbers,

The $40,000 budgeted for performance fees will ensure that special performances and events are
held monthly duting 2024. No details, such as a list of potential bands, were provided with the
application. Supplemental information provided during the application review period incladed some
possibilities but stated that not}iing has been finalized. The application also did not provide details
for the use of the §40,000 requested for marketing the events. The supplemental information noted .
that Friends of Southwest Virginia and Virginia Toutism will collaborate with the applicant to assist
with matrketing effotts. If the application is approved it is important that, prior to the release of any
Commission funds, a comptehensive matketing plan that documents a focus on the recruitment of
visitors from outside the region be provided. This requirement will ensure that the scope of the
project aligns with this program’s requitements for tourism projects. Because of the time sensitive -
nature of the 2024 celebration, which requites that planning efforts be underway immediately, these
conditions ate included in the funding recommendation.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A treview of key viability criteria for this project indicates a rapidly approaching deadline for a'set of
events celebrating a key milestone for a well-known regional tourism asset. A general budget was
supplied without cost estimates; which will require that a plan for marketing and estimates for event
production will eventually need to be provided, 25% of the required 1:1 matching funds is in hand,
with the remainder to be raised in shott ordet. It is staffs assessment that the financial viability of
the project will be dependent on the ability to raise the matching funds and implementation of
detailed plans that will more adequately demonstrate the effective use of the funding to support the
events to honor this important asset.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends an award of $80,000 contingent upon acquisition
of full matching funds to suppozst the project, provision of cost estimates/quotes and the
Grant Director’s approval of a detailed marketing plan.

23
—-2h—



Virginia's Heritage Music Trail: The Crooked Road
The Crooked Road: Musical Milestones (#4199)
$30,000.00 Requested.

Project Summary: The Musical Milestones in Southwest Vitginia project will celebrate the 20th
anniversaty of The Crtooked Road: Vitginia's Heritage Music T'rail, the 50th annivessary of The
Carter Family Fold, and the 40th anniversary of the Floyd Country Store's Friday Night Jambotee. A
one-day celebration will be hosted at each venue to celebrate each location’s anniversary in
conjunction with The Crooked Road's 20th Anniversary. Commission funds will be used for
performance fees and marketing expenses.

Matching Funds:
s $30,000 - Appalachian Regional Commission (application filed)

Project Outputs:
¢ The Crooked Road will increase visitation to the region by 10% in 2024.
e The Floyd Country Store and the carter Family Fold \vill_ each increase visitation by 5%.

Staff Comments:

Although the co-celebration of these multiple milestones will provide a marketing opportunity for
The Crooked Road, the Carter Fold, and the Floyd Countty Stote thete is little evidence that the
celebrations will have a sustained itpact on visitation to the region. For this reason, a funding
tequest such as this is not an ideal fit for this program’s tourism investment strategy. The project
could be mote approptiately supported through a one-titne sponsorship, however TRRC does not
cutrently have a formal procedure for requesting this type of funding. Despite the short-term impact
of these events, each will celebrate significant milestone anniversaties for some of Southwest
Virginia’s best known toutism venues and initiatives. The creation of the Crooked Road helped sput
a new focus on the region’s traditional music which has continued to grow over the past 20 yeats.
The initiative contributed to the development of a tegional toutism mindset which has resulted in
the development of other trail systems and destinations focused on the atea’s cultural heritage and
natural assets. Since 2004 the Commission has provided over $2M in support of the development
and expansion of The Crooked Road and is considered to be one of TRRC’s legacy tourism
investments. For this reason, it is important that assistance is provided to support these eveants. As a
condition of this suppott, the Commission should be included in all marketing materials associated
with the event.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A treview of key viability critetia for this project indicates a rapidly approaching deadline for a set of
events celebrating a key milestone for a well-known regional tourism asset. A detailed budget and
matketing plan was provided with the proposal. The required 1:1 matching funds have been
requested from ARC. It is staff’s assessment that the financial viability of the project will be
dependent on the ability to obtain the matching funds.

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends an award of $30,000, contingent upon
acquisition of full matching funds to support the project.

24
_27_



Extensions and Modifications

Blue Ridge Public Television, Inc.

Digital Media Content and Delivery System — Sights, Sounds, and Stoties
(#3602)

Approved for $325,000 in January 2020 ($97,211 balance)
Request for final extension

Staff Overview & Comments: "This grant was approved four years ago to support the development
of video content highlighting the TRRC region. The award provided support for start up operating
expenses including salaries, travel, and equipment. Last year the scope of the project expanded as a
result of the creation of the PBS Appalachia station. The balance of the grant is primatily budgeted
for equipment purchases for the station. The requested extension will allow the grantee to complete
these purchases under the current approved budget. No budget amendments, including the shifting
of funds between approved line items, will be allowed.

. Staff recommends the approval of a final extension through July 30, 2024.

25
—-28- .



" SOUTHERN VIRGINIA
COMMITTEE

iy, Y.



« In-Person Meeting =
AGENDA

SOUTHERN VIRGINIA COMMITTEE

January 8, 2024 - 4:00 P.M.
Delta Hotels by Marriott Richmond Downtown

Kanawha Ballroom
555 East Canal Street, Richmond, VA 23219

The public may remotely participate in this meeting by accessing the following dial-in numbers: 1-434-230-0065 (toll) and
enter conference ID: _885 164 502# . '

The Commission will not change the method by which it chooses to meet without providing a new meeting notice that is in
accordance with the Va. Freedom of Information Act. If problems are experienced calling in, please contact: Hannah
Franke-Fuller at (804)-894-9659 or hfranke-fuller@revitalizeva.org or Joyce Knight at (804) 894-9651.

Welcome and Call to Order Myr. Walter “Buddy” Shelton, Chair
Call of the Roll | The Honorable James Campos, Acting Executive Director
Approval of the 10/11/23 Minutes (published on website)

Public Comment

Grant Projects : Ms. Sarah Capps, Southern Regiorlml Director
Extensions and Modifications - Ms. Sarah Capps, Southern Regionérl Director
Other Business | " M. Stephen Versen, Deputy Director
Adjournment

-30- -



FY24 Southern Virginia Program
Staff Summaries and Recommendations

The Commission received one invited out-of-cycle application which will be considered in
closed session. The Commission also received revised proposals for two applications that were
Tabled at the Southern Virginia Committee meeting in October 2023. Applications are grouped
by investment category. The Southern Virginia Committee will act on these three funding
requests at its meeting January 8, 2024, at 4:00 pm.

CQNFIDENTIAL PROJECT DISCUSSION
Materials to be distributed in closed session.

AGRIBUSINESS

Southside Vitginia Fruit and Vegetable Producers Association
Southside Vitginia Fruit and Vegetable Producers Assocation Aggregation
Capacity Improvements (#4210)
$105,000 Requested

Executive Summary: _
The Southside Virginia Fruit and Vegetable Producer Association (SVFVPA) is located in Charlotte
County Virginia and is made up of 28 independent small farm operations located in eight undet-

-

5 . . Staff
Req # Organization Project Title Iﬁgfiid Recommendaibn
: CONFIDENTIAL
CLOSED SESSION PROJECT $ - $ -
. 8 DISCUSSION
Agribusiness
Southside Virginia Fruit SoliiEsiic A RN ¢
4210 | and Vegetable | 4 VoBetable Producers | 05099 | g 105,000
Producers Association : E81C8
Capacity Improvements
Tourism
¢ 247 ’):l 7
4165 | Town of Blackstone Making Ends Meet ‘é Bi:;;B $ 121,383
Total (3 requests) $ 226,383

$ 226,383




served surrounding counties. The members of the Association work together to aggregate produce
and market it to larger wholesale buyets. Collectively, more than 100 acres of produce is grown
including sweet cotn, tomatoes, peppets, green beans, cabbage, swiss chard, collards, potatoes, and
squash. The Association is seeking funds to complete the aggregation facility, purchase needed
equipment, and for expansion of cooler space to increase storage-and product shelf life. This project
will improve the Association's ability to accept, sott and stote products. It will also pave a path for
non-Good Agticultural Practices (GAP) cettified growers to market their products through the
Association. This will allow smaller start-up farms an opportunity to enter production, and for other
farms to diversify into fruit and vegetable production. This will inctease revenue for each
patticipating farm and should add additional farm-related employment opportumtles to these
agj_lcultural operations in the Tobacco region.

Matching Funds:
$105,000 USDA Rural Business Development Grant

Project Outputs;

e Complete buildout of intetior of aggregation center including purchase and installation of coolet
to be used for retail sales, purchase equipment, and relocation of an existing building to the
associations propetty to be used for additional storage.

o  Goals include increasing the current 28-member farms by 60% and doubling sales revenues.

Staff Comments:

The Southern Virginia Committee received a $1,210,000 funding request from the association that
was reviewed at the meeting in October 2023. That request was recommended to be Tabled, with
the applicant invited to submit a new application with revised scope and budget. This more modest
request addresses the association’s most critical costs and removes a significant portion of the
previous funding request which was for a ptivate entity’s interests related to software development.

This project will complete necessary improvements and equipping to put the new aggregation and
distribution center into operation for the Southside Vitginia Fruit and Vegetable Producers
Association at the site in Cullen, VA (Chatlotte County). Grant funds will be used towards the cost
to purchase a cooler for ditect to customer marketing, for purchase of an electric pallet jack to move
product at the facility, and costs to relocate an existing 20’ X 30’ building to the site.

The Commission awarded a $176,000 grant in January 2020 toward construction of the new
aggregation facility. This 6,000 square foot shell building is in place with concrete floor and two latge
bays, and a gravel driveway and patking area. The association has a goal to complete building
improvements suppotted by matching funds by the end of May 2024, to accommodate the spring
growing season. The 20’ X 30’ building that would be moved to the site was previously purchased by
Vitginia State University through a grant from the Tobacco Commission. This building can be
converted for additional cold storage by adding a cool-bot, ot otherwise used for storage of
materials used by the association and member operations.

A copy of the 2019 Business Plan for the SVEVPA was provided. The association is working with
Longwood Small Business Development Center and with VAFAIRS to update their Business Plan
with revised financial projections and have committed to providing staff with the updated version.
With the completion of the facility, the association expects to increase farmer members by an

—-32-



additional 60% and double annual sales revenues within three years. A partnership has developed
with the local Amish community cheese facility, for the association to distribute their cheese
products suppotting further growth in cheese production in the region. Staff recognizes that the
efforts of the SVFVPA, and progress to date, reflects a strong commitment by the agribusiness
community to pattner for expanding opportunities for small and start-up farm operations.

Financial Viability Assessment: ,

A review of key viability ctitetia for this indicates a viable project by an applicant with a long history
of effective produce aggregation. A detailed, reasonable budget was provided with documentation of
costs for construction. The tequited match is fully committed at the time of application.
Sustainability will be driven by the additional capacity provided by incteased farm revenues. The
applicant has been asked to update its business plan and proforma as it was five years old. It is the
staff’s conclusion that this project would be a good investment for the Commission for both job
creation and positive economic impact for the participating farmers.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of a $105,000 grant award contingent on the final budget being

apptroved by Commission staff, and contingent on the revised Business Plan being provided
prior to disbursement of grant funds.

Town of Blackstone
Making Ends Meet (#4165)

$247,217.00 Requested $121,383 Revised Request

Executive Summary:

The original request of $247,217 was reduced to $121,383 for 50% of costs for puxchasé of
hospitality-related equipment for the training center being developed at the Harris Memorial Armory
Center. This equipment will be used to train hospitality students to serve existing and future
restaurant and lodging businesses in the T'own of Blackstone and the surrounding areas. Virginia
State University and Virginia Union University will host classes and internships for students at the
facility. Other ateas of the building would be used as rental space for banquets and receptions.
Students in the job training programs would work at these events to gain industry experience as patt
of theit hospitality training. The increased demand in lodging is a result of the creation of the
Foreign Affaits Security Training Center (FASTC) facility at Fort Batfoot. This facility provides
training to over 10,000 personnel annually including DSS special agents, members of the US
Government Foreign Affairs community, and local employed petrsonnel from US embassies and
consulates from around the world.

Cuttrently the Harris Memorial Armory Center is under renovation in preparation for the new
hospitality training program. The building renovation is targeted to be completed by August 2024
with expectations to hold the first classes in Fall 2024. The Town of Blackstone is seeking funding
to putchase culinary education equipment for 10 student stations, seating and place settings for 100
guests, online and in-petson educational resources and equipment, and hotel educational resoutces.

Matching Funds:
$121,383.29 American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) federal funding- money in hand

-33-



Project Outputs:
e Hquip hospitality training areas for the Armory Hospitality Training Institute located within the
Harris Memorial Armory Center in Blackstone allowing for hospitality training to begin.

Staff Comments:
This application was tabled at the October 2023 meeting of the Southern Virginia Committee, due
to insufficient financial information, and to allow time for a required education training plan to be

completed. The Town has requested a reduced amount of $121,383 towards 50% of the $242.766
revised cost estimate for equipment and furnishings.

Creation of the hospitality training center at the Hartis Memotial Armory Center is a priority
economic development initiative of the Town of Blackstone to suppott the town and the region’s
overwhelming growth in the toutism sector of the economy. The Commission approved a $581,000
grant (#4106) in January 2023 towards the $3.78 million estimated costs for renovating the former
military armory building. The building consists of 16,400 sq. ft. providing two main floots and a
basement level, and a balcony on the west end of the building. A construction and operational
feasibility study completed in August 2016, identified the highest ranked use for redevelopment of
the armory was for a Learning Centet & Multiputpose Event Space.

A contingency on the previous Commission grant was for a hospitality education training plan with
details on certifications and credentials that would be offered by the education partners. The primary
education partner is Virginia Union University, who has proposed four short-term certification
programs that would be offered in Blackstone through VUU’s Technical College.

This funding request and match encompasses the equipping costs for culinary arts kitchen and other
educational supplies and furnishings needed to train hospitality students. The Town developed the
$242.766 detailed equipment cost estimate collaborating with Virginia State University’s head of
hospitality and Commonwealth Atchitects. The training areas within the building include the event
space with a 6,200 sq. ft. multipurpose room, 550 sq. ft. entertainment stage and 1,500 sq. ft.
kitchen. A detailed list of small equipment putchases and long-lived supplies for start-up of the
program was provided to suppott the tequest. The Town of Blackstone is requesting 50% of grants
funds towards all line items for classtoom equipment, front end restaurant training equipment,
commercial kitchen and back-end training equipment, and hotel training materials. The targeted
date for the hospitality training facility to be completed and equipped is August 2024.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A review of key viability criteria fot this project reveals a well-documented budget with vendor
quotes. Sufficient matching funds are in hand. The applicant has met the previous contingency with
the submission of a hospitality education training plan, which helps to demonstrate their capacity
more cleatly for conducting the full project and to document anticipated outcomes for the
educational portion of the project. As presented, it is staff’s assessment that the proposed project is
viable and necessaty to catty out the full vision of the overall goal of establishing the tta_ining
program.

_3 44—



Staff Recommendation: Staff recommend approval of a $121,383 grant award for 50% of the
equipping costs for establishing the hospitality training center.

Extension and Modifications

Institute for Advanced Learning and Research

Controlled Environment Agriculture: Increasing and Diversifying Agtibusiness
in Southern Virginia (TRRC #3590)

$365,520 Grant — Award 1/7/2020 — 5® Year Extension Requested

Project Summary: The Commission approved a $365,520 Agribusiness grant in January 2020 to
suppott establishment of a Controlled Environment Agriculture (CEA) innovation and education
center at IALR in Danville. The objective of this pattnetship of industry, academia and producers is
focused on increasing net farm income and profitability while diversifying agribusiness in the region.
Gtant funds support a post doc position over three yeats; well as start-up costs for supplies, travel
and funding for conducting conferences and wortkshops. The post-doc position started August 2020,
with the third year for position being in August 2023. Payments totaling $125,894.17 have been
approved for expenditures submitted through June 30, 2022. There remains a $239,625.83 balance
on the TRRC project account. Staff notes that IALR is overdue in submitting requests for
reimbutsement of eligible costs between July 2022 and December 2023,

A fifth extension is requested for January 31, 2025. The additional year will allow remaining funds to
be used toward hosting the thitd DEA Summit East; matket the center utilizing the newly
completed CEA Strategy and Roadmap Study and continue to run demonstration equipment
suppotted from Matching funds. IALR also plans to hold a new CEA conference in 2024, that will
focus on entrepteneurs and startup businesses. Initially delays were in filling the post doc position
which occurred in the third quarter of first year, and restrictions on gatherings during Covid 19.
TALR repotts having 200 attendees with 17 trade show exhibitors, and 240 attendees with 20 trade
show exhibitors, respectively for the CEA Summit Bast conferences in 2022 and 2023.

Staff Recornmendation: Staff tecommends approval of an extension to January 31, 2025,

-35-



INCENTIVES AND LOANS
'COMMITTEE

-36-



« In-Person Meeting »
AGENDA

INCENTIVES & LOANS COMMITTEE

January 9, 2024 - 9:00 A.M.
Delta Hotels by Marriott Richmond Downtown

Kanawha Ballroom
555 East Canal Street, Richmond, VA 23219

The public may remotely participate in this meeting by accessing the following dial-in numbers: 1-434-230-0065 (toll) and
enter conference ID: _885 164 502# .

The Commission will not change the method by which it chooses to meet without providing a new meeting notice that is in
accordance with the Va. Freedom of Information Act. If problems are experienced calling in, please contact: Hannah
Franke-Fuller at (804)-894-9659 or hfranke-fuller@revitalizeva.org or Joyce Knight at (804) 894-9651.

Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Daniel “Danny” A/farshall, Chair
Call of the Roll The Honorable James Campos, Acting Executive Director
Approval of the 10/12/23 Minutes (published on website)

Public Comment

Extensions & Modifications Mr. Jordan Butler, TROF Program Manager

Partnership with tl.le Virginia Small Mr. Joe Shearin, Executive Director

Business Financing Authority Virginia Small Business Financing Authority
Confidential Project Discussion Closed Ses;vion
Other Business Mpr. Stephen Versen, Deputy Director |
Adjournment

-37-



Incentives & Loans Committee
January 9, 2024

The Incentives and Loans Committee is meeting on Januaty 9, 2024 at 9:00 am to consider
performance period extensions for existing projects as well as other business. The following
_summaties provide staff overview and comment on the performance period extensions.

1. Greensville County
Oran Safety Glass, Inc. (#3295)
Request fot a Performance Extension.

Staff Overview and Comments: This is a Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund (TROF) grant for
$235,000 that was awarded to the Greensville County and Oran Safety Glass, Inc. (the “Company”).
- The petformance petiod was Match 2017 through March 2020. An administrative extension was
granted through March 2021 and the Cofnmission subsequently granted an extension through June
of 2023. The performance agreement tequited the company to employ 55 individuals with an

© average annual wage of $43,000 and provide new private taxable assets of $4,450,000. The grant was
disbursed pre-performance and a clawback will be due if all performance metrics ate not met.

Based on available -data, the Company has met the promised level of capital investment, delivering
6,274,920 of capital investment, well over the $4,500,000 promised.

The company has struggled to meet the employment obligation and has so far created 28 of the
promised 55 jobs. It should be noted that the company is paying average annual wages well over
those requited by the agreement.

The company has also fully repaid a $117,500 TROF loan that was awarded alongside the grant.

The company notes that they have made, and continue to make, significant effotts to hire new
employees. These efforts have included increasing their market value starting salary by more than
40%. The company currently has at least 30 open positions that need to be filled at the plant and
effotts to fill those positions are ongoing. _

Given their active hiring, investment, wages paid, full repayment of the loan and overall
performance to date, the Company, with the support of the County, is requesting an extension to
include updated employment data that will show they have met more, or all, of their obligations
under the grant agreement and allow efforts to meet the grant requitements to continue.

Staff recommends a performance extension through June 30, 2024,

~38-



2. Smyth County Economic Development Authotity
Smyth County Machine and Fabrication, LLC (#3485)
Request for a Performance Extension.

Staff Overview and Comments: This is a Tobacco Region Oppottunity Fund (TROF) grant for
$200,000 that was awarded to the Smyth County and Smyth County Machine and Fabrication, LEC
(the “Company”). The petformance petiod was September 2018 through September 2021. An
administrative extension was granted through September 2022 and the Cominission subsequently
granted an extension through September of 2023. The performance agreement required the
company to employ 53 individuals with an average annual wage of $35,883 and provide new private
taxable assets of $4,000,000. The grant was disbursed pre-petformance and a clawback will be due if
all performance metrics are not met.

. Based on available data, the Company has met 63% of the promised level of capital investment,
delivering $2,537,4410f capital investment. ‘ '

'The company has created 32 of the promised 53 jobs. The company is paying average annual ‘;vages
above those required by the agreement.

"The company cites supply chain disruptions, inflation and a challenging job market as reasons they
have struggled to meet the performance requirements. The company futther notes that recent
purchases, not yet included in the data available to Commission staff, will increase theit performance
telated to the capital investment goal.

Given their jobs created to date, significant and continuing investment, wages paid, and ongoing
effotts to meet the requitements of the agreement, the Company, with the sﬁpport of the EDA, is
requesting an extension to include updated data that will show they have met more of their
obligations under the agreement and allow effotts to fully satisfy their obligations to continue.

Staff recommends a performance extension through June 30, 2024.

-39~



Dr. Charlette T. Woolridge

X Tony M. Conwell
Director

Chairman
Gary L. Cifers District 4
Assistant County

s James Brown
Administrator

Vice-Chairman
District?

Russell O. Slayton, Jr.
GREENSVILLE
Tameka Green . . Dr'srrr'c; 1
Director of Finance v L2 & 11N I A William B. Cai
" Growiug Towards New Horlzons ' 'ag’,-s,;,-cf}"

Hon. James E. Campos

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
701 E. Franklin St., Suite 501

Richmond, VA 23219

Re: Extension of Grant: Oran Safety Glass

Dear Mr. Campos:

Oran Safety Glass has exceeded the goals of capital investment for the TROF grant awarded in
2017. Unfortunately, due to the COVID pandemic, the job creation has fallen short. Greensville

- County supports the company's request for a second extension. While recovering from the
pandemic, it is proven difficult to find employees. The company has continued to have orders and
the ability to grow their employment numbers and the County believes they will be able to
achieve their job goals should an extension be granted.

OSG continues to be a great community partner, expanding 3 times since locating in Greensville
County. Prior grant awards have been successfully administered by the company. It is the
County's belief that OSG will do everything possible to successfully complete this award as well
by the next extension deadline.

We appreciate your con31delat10n of our request and will be happy to provide additional
information as needed.

Sincerely,

patalse B. Shite

Natalie B. Slate
Director of Economic Development

1781 Greensville County Circle, Emporia, VA 23847 . Telephone 434/348/4213 Fax 434/348-4257 Email: admin.wsa@greensvillecountyva.gov

_40_



Jass

VISION THROUGH GLASS T_RANS_PURTATIDN _| DEFENSE & SECURITY | SPEC!AL APPLICATIONS
TR 5 T

SR B A o o O R N A R

L R 5 S et A 28 = e M e e

. November 30, 2023

Greensville County
1781 Greensville County Circle Emporia, Virginia 23847
Attn: Natalie Slate, Director of Economic Development

RE: Project 3295 Oran Safety Glass, Inc.

Dear Mrs. Slate,

- | am responding today regarding Project 3295 - Oran Safety Glass speci-ﬁ'cally the requirements set
forth by the Tobacco Commission as a condition of the grant funds received by Oran Safety Glass. 0SG
remains fullv'committed to meeting the terms of our agreement. We have fulfilled the capital investment
obligation but continue tp struggle to meet the terms of the employee obligation as agreed upon.

Our company has been trying for several years (in fact from the onset of the COVID. 19 pandemic) to
hire new employees to meet the grant ob!igétion. It has been extremely challenging trying to fill the open
positions at 0SG, and we have implemented extraordinary measures to mitigate the challenge. OSG has
increased our market value starting salary by more than 40% and these efforts are ongoing. We currently
have at least 30 open positions that. need to be filled at the plant despite all our efforts to attract and retain
new employees.

We respectfully request a second extension of the TROF grant as we continue to strive to meet the
criteria.

Respectfully,
David Yogev

V.P. Business Development, Oran Safety Glass, Inc.

48 Industrial Parkway Emporia, Virginia 23847
“ Tel; 434-336-1620 | Fax: 434-336-1621 | www.05g-armor.com

T
._.41._..



Atkins District

AR Chilhowie District
) North Fork District
; ; Smyth County, Virginia Park District
. ; - 121 Bagley Circle, Suite 100 Royal Oak District
s M Y T H Marion, Virginia 24354 Rye Valley District
P | : Saliville District

Charles E. Atkins
Michael L. Sturgill
Charles P. Stevenson
Kristopher S. Ratliff, DPh
Courtney Widener

Lori H. Deel

Roscoe D. Call

T g y ¥y County Administrator Shawn M. Utt
’ COU N jl Y ) VA Asst. County Administrator - Operations Lisa Richardson
. Asst. County Administrator - Development Clegg Williams

December 22, 2023

Stephen Versen

Deputy Director

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
701 East Franklin Street, Suite 501
Richmond, VA 23219

RE: Project 3485 Smyth County Machine and Fabrication LLC TROF Extension Request

Dear Mr. Versen,

Please use this letter as Smyth County’s support of Smyth County Machine and Fabrication’s
request regarding their Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund performance agreement for a sixth-year
extension. Smyth Machine & Fabrication has an obvious commitment to our community and
continues to strive toward reaching its own goals as well as the metrics of the performance
agreement. With extreme shifts in the local, state, and national economies, Smyth Machine has
had to make strategic decisions that have delayed their ability to reach the promises within their
original expansion commitments. Despite the obstacles Smyth Machine has faced, they have
continued to be a strong community partner, and a successful company that continues to make
investments into their employees and business operations. .

With an approved extension, Smyth County Machine & Fabrication is confident they will meet
the capital investment requirement by the subsequent performance date.

Should you have any additional questions, please don’t hesitate to contact our office at 276-706-
8304.

Respectfully,

o bt

Kendra Hayden 7
Director of Community & Economic Development

HSMYTHS TheN

Smyth County Board of Supervisors
Ph. (276) 783-3298 | Fax (276) 783-9314 | www.smythcounty.org



SMYTH COUNTY MACHINE

* RMEECON MAYE DY AWEHCIN CRUTTINED

December 15, 2023

Kendra Hayden

Smyth County Economic Development
121 Bagley Circle, Suite 100

Marion, VA 24354

Dear Kendra,

Thank you for reaching out regarding our progress toward the capital expansion commitment for the Tobacco Region
Opportunity Fund grant. Due to extenuating circumstances, we would like to respectfully request that the
performance date be extended.

As with most business, unforeseen circumstances in the last three years have significantly hampered our efforts to
meet our planned expansion goals:

e  Supply chain disruptions have greatly decreased the availability of equipment used in our operations.
Manufacturers of CNC machines, for example, have extended the time it takes for a machine to be produced
once an order is placed. Where previous availability may have been one to two months, we have seen
promise dates ranging from six to nine months or longer. Similar disruptions in shipping can mean delays
of up to a year between order placement and equipment receipt.

e Inflation, as well as extremely high interest rates, require that we take a much more careful approach in
making commitments of the magnitude necessary to meet our expansion goals. Economic conditions
worldwide have recently resulted in decreasing customer demand, and maintaining long term viability as
an employer in Smyth County means making strategic financial decisions that were unexpected when the
commitment was made.

e  Supporting our employees has always been of the highest priority. As you know, we are a small company

‘ competing with employers like General Dynamics, Utility Trailer, and Volvo for available workforce.

Attracting qualified workers in the current economy means, at least in the short term, increased wages and
benefits must take priority over investing in facilities and equipment.

Our commitment to meeting the capital expansion goal remains firm, however. In 2023 we purchased a new

machine that will significantly add to the current total reported by the Commissioner of Revenue’s office. It is our
intention to satisfy the commitment and believe that is possible with additional time.

We very much appreciate the i:ounty’s support and willingness to consider our request for an extension. If you have
any questions or would like additional information, please contact me at your convenience.

Respectfully, .
fﬁxma-u.ﬂmwu<

Becky Crouse, Controller
Smyth County Machine and Fabrication, LLC

il [ | :,-kj‘«‘_r 1-:‘.- AT ﬂ'*”l'." -
:‘i;'U\-lil 'f li}lllr i

‘ 1
, AMERICAN I!AUE ‘( AWERICAN CRAFTSMEN

sl s



Auoqny Supueury
ssoursng [[eWS TIUISIIA

VAFSA

AjLoyiny Bupubuig
ssauisng ||pwg DIUIBIIA 9Y)




(0°T 109SS) @AlRIIU| HpaID ssaulsng |[PWS S4P4S
wpibBoid uolpdioiind upo
wpiBoid Apupions upoT
woiBoid Buloupbulq 210D PIIYD
E“_Emohn_ UDO|OIDIW o
pun4 upo juswdojeAs( OIWOUODT
:opnjoul swoiboid s y4gSA 40
2WOS "Y|PeMUOWLIOD By} ynoybnoiy} uoisupdxe pup Y4Moib olwouoos 1o} papaau
Buioubui} 8y} YHMm seloyND juswdojeASp OlWouood pub ‘spjold-104-Lou ‘sessauisng
apiroid o) swoiboid siayjo (Y49SA) Atioyiny Buioupul] sssuisng [|PWS pIUIBIIA ay]

ALoyiny Bupupuly ssauIsng __UEW pluibaip




b

SOl§S1}PiS

pup seinBig V44SA




4

£20Z 43gW3AON 40 SV

AON 40 S8 QLA ¥TAS
00°000'000'TS
00°000°000°C$
00°000°000°€$
00'000°000%S
00°000°000°5S
00°000°0009$
00°000°000°L$
00°000°000°8$
00°000°000'6$
|eyol— wuoddng|elol— 303117 [230L— ‘ 00°000°000°0TS
S 12 8€'8€6'001'T 6ETB8LEE'S S VT
= 000007006 ,
00'0000T9 08'965/8T LT'8LS'E8 : 9£'69627T 00°005°0T2

8T ¥8S'6LY 00°000°09 g ey 0000009 ] 00°000°05Z
00°'SZ6'TVO'T 6T°L8E'S9S  S/ee6TPLT S 8 | 000006, S T | 007005298

- 00°065'THL’S , 00°000°S6% 00°000°009 T | 00000065
00°000°00% 9L'L8V'T6E Z0'696'C€T 9/'89€°C6

junouly junowyy junowy

8C°0SE'0L8'E 66ELTETYE 8/°650'798C
00°000°S¥S'T 00°00S°LS¥'C =

00'T¥8'€6T

Junowy junowy

£20¢ J3qQUIaA0N ECAd CCAd TCAd 0ZAd
01 €Z0Z AINM - #7ZAd

202-0202 S1edA 1edsid V49SA




£20¢ AVIN 40 SY

£7/c posupdp) 351 | momarerp 5, v IESA 1 s 03 120{qns 2 Foonipoos pus mR], wWIRA JO

EAADOWEmOy g B Rgwsado puw (g -105) Tums Wanxe-xm payseid (gue jgosd-sopou e (X 5£0] 30 DOV 7§ 30 MUOM 395 ¥ (£ ‘w0 a5 16] 535 JO W9 JOF 2009183 [oAUN UF BOMYrEs (1§ wew 7591 (7 is3adopdws og7 owes 0437 (1 ggﬁ%uﬂi&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ!uﬂnﬁ%é«fﬂ rafode,, eeomeng [[wws,,
ssouteng seaupeng
POUMO DRI/ 30] S5 L Hhauesend VIESA IR POLMO BFIR3I A 30 355 L Hwesend VAGSA 9D
Aydde L2y fdde ke s9; uopeaydde sjqepunyaI-uou 0055 | 099 45T 139 Sopeaydde apqepmyaL-now 0TS | 49 3% %g'L % voprandde qepuIyal-Tod 00Z§ s
. suonoesTEr
9%¢ (somasqan] poxd EYQ] PUT EY(T 03 SWeo[1023[p 30} - Wi [SM IO FSL *
%5'S = poxty (e8> 03308{qns) 560 B3EL PAXT IMAITUE MO[BF-TTRO 302K o’ Japus Lq3eg a3pus Lq3e5 JLVH 1SIFLINI
bags™ .a uopezusiio soueisjeny
popGasL kg p ¥ e w0}, 01 - 000§ TS < FUTOT © .
wawak £ - Mu..su»m - =3T3 £ - 0QO'0STS > 30 = sueoT © zaeak G7 ~ woprIROmy ‘eieak (T - WL L (SUEQT A(WEI I & B34 § SURC ULISL @ ST /- EUTOT SIEIST [EAY P WL @ NOLLVZITHOWY
£1mad § - PAINIISUN (WA, & SUOREZRIOWY PUE LAY 21204 (T - TOGEIRIOWY PUT WLIA] SUEST L], » 1pof G - UL ISIUTTIPSI] @ RIE24 § - WIDY IEIUFTHPSID ® PO WHIL
. ayryse eas pordnosc
mAaspoos sageyaand uou jmpood taseqaand Y3035 I t aazred © W Q5= [ead
3203€ SRTIUQEIAY] SAjsTEd 129EI6 (81 s Supprom iedeliiow - ta7e323 (2. [FRuUapEa: :suoseal Jur|admon ssoqun “aatwyal [#31 pgdn300-30uMo-0 rMpood rey pay uMmo-Uo) f[Mpoes aewyaand 005 | SISAIISIOITANI .
:sucreas Suprades ssa[uN "30UETeaIG30 ORI pue] duy 10 aseqamd :2oUeUys13G3Q 3Q9p LISROUE 03 BORXIPSLIN] A auo Wwal) aseuEng By | Poas uf aatesed :3e3E3 [v0s ROy T JAIFEEJ 13EIFI [P [ENTOPITOY
SEIUPENG seaupsng & Smzeyamd
TIIPOYS I jO IPIUIG IO ¥ Smeeyaund so Surms snossas Juypadmos © aoSugang suomeaa Jumpdwes 305 3193p
: £33 013 J0] 333Tmasd S} 03 SUOREIPTPOY (P! 7P od “doyde] Teyde 205 ssweuysy :nardes Suppom .n-nnav..i jesse | aouwETgy ._n.m«o Suppaom Bun!«ukﬁuﬂn«ﬂnnu . |
ssaugenq @ Supserpand 2o Supams ede se yons ASojouyaa}, {(A[uo 19380) £3[oea moOpEIOdsTEL), Suppos yoand 39s5e paxy puv d sdwy Paxy pue: dr ployassa P I 7 pue SISOTIIOMT gy
Jupriom :zaegaand jasze paxy puc susadmby [FLIA3EUT [FUOT J: dmba . ZJUl g P S4e1y PIog: vﬁhﬂ«&ﬂ&v#&:ﬂokggnn pang | pue & pad .Sn!c!ﬂmuuua d (adoad payds .-uﬂkuvnnmkvhoonnnu..am o
Fdn-ms OREMPY . , ) sivvoraav |l
Jo amsunreda YA SR 4 ﬂubo_ummu zaappacad swoy Lpure; par s]aguomny . TEEITE
LS9TSIUMA [FS | 5330093 MEPIYD PIYRII J0 ‘pausiial Apawunion paruadyy suswdoaar( [rrIEMpU[ puEdy q pue , mess »SISEIUIEN] [FWG «SISEIUEN] [EWS
oy (' § d0 SoueTeq
edpapd 963 ;0 9504 Jo Jamo) 1 3 dn Xz e
; =13paosg WOH Ay - 000'STS X @ [° . W AL 93 120iqNs DOIW §'28 KR * L 5d gofu (TS 0 3dueEq
0000STS =M * Exaques 3E) PEYD - DO0OSZS XEW & anmaks X puE TSXORIPPE 105 Yueq AR IE pagrodap 5 ysT] redpugad 20 30 955 L0 39101 94 03 dn e @
TaesIuIIg Joxd 30f pAmuMO . _
Suoums 30 'TRRSA ‘TOMAM 3T HRITNWWID 1qeear Suppd enosSmuvapy o R nEss qof yinomg A aip jgeusq mpofolg - EB%E&M“EBE- UI&?EE-BER%EE-
P & sz rng s AP TpuiRa U 3q0| URal do HEas e pafasd G e e SLHOTTHOTH
‘srenprupor padotduma-yien e o) FEEO( PANp JO UOEINPS PuT ‘AJojes ‘IsaUT|aM TH[EY M dofessp of 10 ded Jupusuy sy Sunly £q ‘ssppoqny Aypynby| pus vopuedx Apynby] pue uopTEdxa WYH90ud
o= o ponimsp & wwiSaxd meojoIar 0], | PUE URQUEG o) £10pLA0d AIEIPIND J1eEE 8y JUBO 8L « 1 1snq o3 Fueoc| Pax] « Tamass da) (e Ureqo sessaaEng RS & TmoaZ ao) pdeo UTRQo SssaTENg [[FTS &

WVHI0Ud NVOTOUIIW WVH20Yd INIINVNI TUVD a1IHI aNNd NVOTINIWJ0T3AIA JIWONDI WVYY204d TVHILVT10D HSVD WVHI0Hd ALNVHVNAD NVOT SWVHO0Ud

Auopny Sunpurury
ssaunsng [[EWS eruISIrA

VAdSA



‘Y 0oMUOWILIOD

oyl ul sgol 000’0z Alloau Bunoodull

pup BuilpsJd ‘DuloupUl) SSBUISNg [[OWS

Ul Uolj[iw +£°9$ UDY3] 8J0W PapIoMD V4dSA

'220¢C 108A ay1 bulng

_4 9_



50

diysiouping

~
dAL PUP V4A4SA




w0

Yi|poMuowwoy 8y} 40 suolsiAipgns |poujod Jeyjo o
sjijoid-uoN o
| sya3/sval o

:Juswdoj@Aep 21WOUODS Ul pabobus suoypziupbip o
ABisug o
ssauisnquby o

:pebobus sessauisng ||PWS o

:sjo)IDW /sauisnpu| pasebip]

uolbay o0oopqO| c.: SI9MO01I0Q O] Uol||iw Q|$ :Po+OI0||D spuny |PLO]

(¥7/1) $onpoid uno ay ]|




53

sdn-{ipjg pup |IDjey :spasy Buipua pajiqiyold
v_.._0>> s|prSp SKpbu Q_Or_ O} S}SssD

pezipioads aJow pup yuswdinbs uo supo| spiAoid 1o siopUS| [DIOISWWOD

yum Buneuppd usym uoijisod UDS|-puooSs 93P} [|IM SUDO| :9|dwpXd
104 °SOI}I}US 94PALId O} SUDO| UO SHUDJ |PIOISWWOD YHM 24odwoo Jou [[IM
"UDO| [PIOIBWWOD JIdY} Mojeq sjulod sispg QQg 1sp9| b Buebipy

A||piousb ‘sossauisng O} SUDO| "SA 84PJ J8MO| 4D paisyo suolpbijqo [piow
YHM payopq syad/sydl o+ supo| ‘B-8) ysu uo Buipuadap JaIp [[IM S0y

29} v4gSA snjd D¥¥L OF %S’S ‘%9 _ S! upoj 1o} 84pJ }oBiID)

UDO| Yopa Uo jsaJajul ul sjulod sispq G UIDS o) YHGSA

upo| yopa saroiddp O] USYM Y4gSA Of vmtmuﬁcch ‘DL o eplisel spund

(¥7/2) ¥onpoid ubo ay |




53

pioddns Jojoas-oijgnd 40O Wi0} SWOS Y{IM asoyy A|p1oedse - "spoaloid Abiaug

ID3JO Of S|QDAISOS SLUNODOD JOf IDM ABY[ S[IYM JouUDW Ajswiy b uf

sioonpoid Aod o4 sseuisng oy 8/qous 4y syonposd Aiysesof puo a.4n4/nolibo umoib
piublii jo s10ss800.1d pappo-onjpA of JIpaid O seulf /supoy buypbiedp :8/dwpx7
‘uoiBey 00oDqgo| oy} woiy sindul Buroinos esoyy A||p1oedse - spoaloid ssauisnquby

SjuswasIingquiIdl Juplb 104 J1DM suonpiado 18y SO MOJJ-YSDD YiIM aJey of spoafosd
LuswdojeAsp ojuou02s pup Ajunwuwoo Bulypiepun suoypziupbio o) supof buyoiedp :ojdwpxy

‘uoiBay 000DgO] BY} Ul JUSWYSDAUI |osidpo

‘uoiypaio gol Jojoes appAld Buipioddns SUCIIBZIUDDIO {USWAO[SASP JIWOUOD]
:jodjdow jobip)

(v/€) jonpoid ubo ayj|




tno [[od Jonpoud upbo| g Qg 4O9HPND ISl
| swpJjowl]
[oAcisddp |puly 10 (WSS J2A0 SUDO|) UOISSILWOY |4 40
(Weg ot dn supoj) eapiwwod 19| ‘(WIS o4 dn supoj) Jo}oa11g DL 9Y4 o4
pa4nos uolpoljddp ‘peA|osel ©ID SUOSSND JO SBNSS| S HIWWOY [P SOUQ -
"MaIAa1 10} SADpP ssauisnq 981y} 4spd| 4o Buipiroid ‘espiwwo)

UDOT @ SOAIJUSOU| Of UDO| JNOCGD UOI{DWIOLUI JUDAS|SI S[IDWS 14DIS DHY]
049 Sl ‘swiS} UO UOILDPUSWWODS] {{DIS
yum Buojp ‘|orciddo pup maiAel 10) DYY] O} SPUSS ‘SUDO| SMIIASL VHESA o
:woiboid 4Oy o4 Ipjiwis sseo0id |pAoiddp upoT .

?\3 jonpoud ubo ayyL

54



55

aoualladxa

Buipusa| ssauisnq ||PWS |PIOISWWOD O SIDSA PauIqWOD +G9 JOAO YHIM }DIS peoousnedx]
piulBiIA [o4ns jnoybBnouy} sessauisng ||[PWs o4 Buipus| eousuadxa jo sipaf Q7 AjDeN
BuroiAies pup ‘@oubusiuibwl ‘Buiso|o ‘Buissoo0.4d UDO| juIdl}4d pUP yoinb epirolg
|pAciddp uDO| 10} SUCIDPUBWWODS! apiroid pup ‘Buipumispun /SISA|puD 1paio Wwioed
Buloupuly ey} wouy Buynsal

uolua}al 1o /pup uonpaio qol puo yoodw O1WOUODS S, ucibBay SYj SISPISUOD OS|P Y4gSA
UDO| 8y} 2IN0SS O} B|qD[IPAD |DISB}D[|0D

ay4 jo Aoonbapo ey} pup juswabpupw s Aundwoo sy} jo sousuadxs sy} so |[oM
so ‘ubo| syt Aodau o4 Ayljiqp s Aundwoo o Buissesso pup ‘Buiueelos ‘Buippulbuio ul §sissy
uoiBai uoissILWOY) 0900qo] dY4 tnoybnoiyt woiboid ayy ajowold

uoynquiuoy Y44SA




"2WOoD
o} sipaAk 1o} uoiBai sy} poddns o} DY dY4 Buljgoua ‘Buipuny |[onyadied spiroid
[[IM JOY} JOUUDW D Ul SPUNj UOISSIWIWOY 099Dq0] oBpisAs| ||m woiboud siy|

‘'S10}09s

ABisus pup sseuisnqubo s,uoiBal sp ||oM sp ‘suoiypziupBio Jduppd JuswdojeAsp
olwouooe Buioddns uo snooy Jojnoipd D YiM ‘einjoniyspljul sseuisng pup
[olysnpul poddns pup UoPSIO gol ‘juswysaAul mau inds [im diysieupind sy

uoisnjouo)

56



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

-57-



» [n-Person Meeting®
AGENDA

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

January 9, 2024 - 10:30 A.M.
Delta Hotels by Marriott Richmond Downtown

_ Kanawha Ballroom
555 East Canal Street, Richmond, VA 23219

The public may remotely participate in this meeting by accessing the following dial-in numbers: 1-434-230-0065 (toll) and
enter conference ID: _885 164 502# .

The Commission will not chahge the method by which it chooses to meet without providing a new meeting notice that is in
accordance with the Va. Freedom of Information Act. If problems are experienced calling in, please contact: Hannah
Franke-Fuller at (804)-894-9659 or hfranke-fuller@revitalizeva.org or Joyce Knight at (804) 894-9651.

Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Frank Ruff, Chair
Call of the Roll The Honorable James Campos, Acting Executive Director
Approval of _9/14/23 & _12/19/23 Minutes (published on website)

Public Comment

Proposed Grant Guidelines for the - Ms. Vicki Humphreys, Grants Director
New Energy and Agriculture Programs :

Loan Foré,iveness Administration Costs Ms. Stephanie Kim, Finance Director

New Senior Administrative Specialist My, Stephen Versen, Deputy Director
Position

Other Business Mr. Stephen Versen, Deputy Director

Adjournment

_58_



Commonwealth of Virginia

Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission

ENERGY INGENUITY FUND
GUIDELINES & REQUEST FOR PROROSALS
' L

Pre-AppIicatioh Pt;bcgss Opens:
( January 17, 2024

Full Appliéafiqﬁs by Invitation Only

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP — Page 1

-59-



Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
FY2024 Energy Ingenuity Fund Program

GUIDELINES & REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

L GENERAL PROGRAM INFORMATION
A. Purpose & Background
B. Investment Categories — Funding Priorities
C. Eligibility — Eligible Applicants, Matching Funds, Use of Funding
D. Application and Submission information
E. Evaluation
F. TRRC Staff Contact Information

il GUIDELINES

" A. Catalyst Grants (
B. Energy Implementation Grants

. REQUIRED DOCUMENTSFOR FULL PROPOSA

V.  REQUIREMENTS OF FUNDING

A, Grants and Loans
B. Award Inforination,
C. Payment of Grant Fur ds
D. Reportir
E. Assets

m;ACHMENTS : .
— Evaluation Criteria:
= Fligible Counties & Cities for Tobacco Commission Funding

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP ~ Page 2

...80_

10

12

14



L GENERAL PROGRAM INFORMATION

A. Purpose & Background

The Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission (“TRRC” or “Commission”) was established by
the Virginia General Assembly in 1999, as a political subdivision of the Commonwealth. The
Commission makes investments to revitalize and diversify the economy of the region it supports.
Projects selected for funding include initiatives that will measurably advance the Commission’s
priorities as a direct result of project success.

The TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund’s Guidelines and Request for Proposals (together, “RFP”) are
issued to solicit applications through a competitive process to‘establish grant and loan ‘
agreements for high impact economic development projects meeting the following objectives:

*+  Deployment of resources to amplify and accelerate investment in energy projects.

* Collaboration between key partners in energy. a‘ind economic development.

* Enhancement and expansion of the region's energy supply chain.

* Development of more energy resiliency ih Southern and Southwest Virginia.

Funding will be considered for projects within the Southern and Southwest Vlrgmla areas of
Virginia’s Tobacco Region, which is detailed on Attachment B - Ehgrb!e Counties & (Cities for
Tobacco Commission Funding on page 17 of this RFP.

Up to $6 million is available for Energy ihrv'e“stment‘s in each ‘f'egion, for a total of $12 million.

A Pre-Application detadmg the proposed project is requ:red and serves as an opportunity for
Commission staff to‘conduct a prehmmary assessment of the likelihood of the project’s eligibility
for funding, and to prowde meanmgfyl feedback to applicants before they prepare a full
application package. Candtdates will be notified by Commission staff if their pre-application is
selected to'move on to the qu apphcatron process.

Full app!ications are evaluated by Commission staﬁ and funding recommendations are put
forward to the full Comm:ssron for further discussion and approval at its spring, fall and winter
meetings. \

‘} .‘71
B. Funding Priorities }

The Commission’s CurrentlStrate?zic Plan identifies its current funding priorities. Logic models are
included therein for the types of projects that the Commission will consider funding.

Details on priorities and the types of projects to be considered under this RFP are provided in
Section Il. Guidelines. All applicants must clearly articulate how the project relates to the goals
of the program. All projects must clearly define outputs that will occur during the project period
_and directly relate to the use of Commission funds and matching funds. Outputs are specific to
each project. '

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP —Page 3

-61-



C. Ellglblhty Ellglbie Applicants, Matching Funds, Uses of Funding
Eligible Applicants

Applications will only be accepted from governmental entities and non-profit organizations
located in and/or providing economic revitalization programs, services, or facilities in the
Tobacco Region. Eligible applicants including the following:

e Governmental Entities - Governmental entities within the Tobacco Region, including
towns, cities, and counties; local or regional industrial or economic development
authorities; regional authorities, and other governmental units.

¢ Non-Profit Organizations - Incorporated non- pl‘()flt o) sanizations designated as tax-

exempt by the federal Internal Revenue Servic

£

Guidelines for applications submitted by regional artnerships and for projects benefiting for-
profit entities, are in Section Il of the Commissi unding Policies discussed below:

. {
Use of Funds by For-Profit Entities — Appiic ns that WE|| benefita p
public purpose and he made by one of the ellglble apph n
The following must be described e application: -

e The public purpose that will: b met by assisting the private beneficiary;

ommission’s Funding Policies for Grant Awards: Information
lune 2020} (“Funding Policies”) has information on general
'pe of expenses not eligible for reimbursement, acceptable

The following list describes uses of Commission funds that generally do not align with
Commission objectives and should be avoided in grant proposals and requests for grant
disbursement. Additional detail about specific non-eligible uses of funds is availablein Section VIl
of the Funding Policies document.

e Commission funds should not bie used outside the defined Tobacco Region (unless
explicitly approved by the Commission).

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP —Page 4

—62-



¢ Commission funds should not be used to supplant other state or federal funds for which
an applicant is eligible. This inf_:ludes financing options for off-site utility improvements.

¢ Commission funds should not be used for regularly recurring local responsibilities (e.g.
comprehensive plans, K-12 school funding). -

¢ Commission funds should not be used to finance endowments. -
« Commission funds should not be used for debt retirement.

o Commission funds should not be used for ongoing aperating support beyond a start-up
period that has been explicitly approved by the Commission.

e Commission funds should be invested in projects that generate substantial direct and
measurabie new economic activity in a region. Comn’ir sion funds shouid not be used for
projects that indirectly affect economic revitalizati g. community centers, childcare
centers, 4H centers, YMCA or recreational initié:t es, airports, local arts and cultural
activities, historic preservation, housing and retai develop“ ent) unless it is
demonstrated that the investment will produce mgmﬁcant cdnomlc impacts from
outside the Commission service area.(

there-are defined and documented pu.b.llc-p:"
ri te.capltai mvestment

(1:1) matchm'" unds, with no more than’ 21 5% of the match requirement from “in-kind” sources.
Loan requests dg not have a ma_tch reqwrement Expenses already included in an annual budget

such as personnel and other ope' iting costs will count toward the 25% In-Kind limit.

Applicants for grant aws \ds mu___,, submit details on the nature, source, and timing of match
contributions necessary for meeting the 1:1 match requirement. Once secured, matching funds
must be committed to the project and available as needed and must not be conditioned or
encumbered in any way that may preciude their use for the project during the grant period.
Applicants should provide a commitment letter or equivalent document signed by an authorized
representative of the organization providing matching funds to document each source of match.

If the Commission awards a grant to an applicant who has not secured acceptable matching
funds at the time of award, the applicant will have up to 12 months from the date of the award

to secure matching funds or else the Commission may rescind the award and de-obligate its
funds. '

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP - Page 5

-H3—



D. Application and Submission Information

Pre-application proposals for consideration in May 2024 must be submitted by midnight on
February 15 through the Commission’s online application portal:
https://vtc.smartsimple.com/s Login.jsp.

A completed pre-application is REQUIRED for all Energy funding requests and is in the grant
portal as “Energy/Pre-Application — Southern Region” or “Energy/Pre-Application — Southwest
Region,” depending on the location of the project. In addition to text fields of the application,
up to 10 pages of additional project description may be submitted as an attachment.

Based on the information provided in the Energy/Pre- Abplicat‘ion, applicants will be invited to

submit a full funding request. Pre-applications mwted to move forward to full application will

submit by March 15, 2024. )

Applicants must certify they have read this RFP and the Commission’s Funding Policies; that the
information in their applications is true and corréct; and that documentation for any claims and
representations made can be made available Upon request from Commission staff. The
certification must be made by an authorized representative of the applicant organization.

All information expressly required bv this RFP must be mcluded Proposals whlch are
substantially incomplete or lack kev mformatlon will be conmdered nonresponsive. These
proposals will be declined for review and WI|| not be presented to the committee.

E. Evaluation

The Commission’s Southern or Southwest Vlrglnla Committees WI|| evaluate apphcatlons
submitted in response to this RFP, dependmg on the location of the project. Staff
recommendations to the Commlttee will be based upon requirements in this RFP and the
Evaluation Scorlng Criteria prowded in Attachment A, Approval of funding is at the sole
discretjon of the Commlssmn The Commlssmn reserves the right to cancel this RFP, to not
proceed with any or all appllcatlons to condition its award on additional terms and condltlons,
or to award a loan to an appllcant who sought a grant.

F. TRRC Staff Contact lnforrﬁat?on

TRRC staff are available to assist _w'ith applications. For technical assistance with logging in or
setting up an account with the Commission’s online grants portal, please contact:

e Suzette Patterson, Grants System Manager (Richmond, VA)
(804) 894-9662, spatterson@revitalizeva.org

For technical assistance in development of Energy Ingenuity applications please contact:

e Jerry Silva, Regional Energy Development and Innovation Director (Richmond, VA)
(804) 325-4363, jsilva@revitalizeva.org

e Vicki Humphreys, Grant Programs Director (Richmond, VA)
(804) 894-9658, vhumphreys@revitalizeva.org

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP — Page 6

_64_



ll. GUIDELINES FOR ENERGY INGENUITY FUND PROJECT PROPOSALS

Background:

TRRC has established a $12 million dollar fund for rural, disadvantaged, or Native American
communities with $6 million designated for energy-related projects in each of its service regions,
Southern and Southwest Virginia. This program is designed as an umbrella that can review various
types of proposals for energy projects. With a focus on establishing a ‘best in class’ energy

economy, this fund is expected to capitalize on a skilled workforce and promote an energy focused
economy for the Tobacco Region.

energy can facilitate bringing
ergy production, grid resiliency,
nd, smali scale modular reactors,

This intention recognizes that economies with a stronger foc
~energy jobs, energy manufacturing supply chain companiet’;
energy storage, microgrids, hydrogen generation, smart cit
conversion of coal mines, etc.

Objectives:

e Boost energy supply chains for economic development in the Tobacco

e jncrease energy resiliency in Southern and Southw tVir ¢ n_sa

s Enable scglable innovations in the" riergy entrepren :

¢ Develop and implement impactful energy projects in the T _bacco Region

s leverage federal, state, local and prlva undrng resources for energy development
through collaborat|on among key part'ners such as wDP us Department of Energy, and

el ' [6 ! _rs assistance available to

l'ecosystem

s Virginia Economlc Developrrlent Partﬁ"ersh;p (VEDP)

e Virginia Resource Authority: (VRA) i
e Virginia Smail Busmess Financing Authorlty (VSBFA)

e Virginia Department of Envi rf\ental Quality

¢ Virginia Department'o Hou: and Community Development — GO Virginia Program

Eligible InuestmentS'

A. Energylngenmty Catalyst Grants

Planning and capacity building —Funding may be requested for up to 50% of third-party
professional services to support critical planning activities focused on major energy projects.

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP — Page 7

_65_



Awards of up to $50,000 will support project development for major energy projects in their
pursuit of federal, and other funding resources needed for successful implementation. Grant
funds are expected to be used primarily for capacity development expenditures such as
administrative, profession and technical services, grant writing and management, project
development and management, legal and engineering expenses, and capacity building expenses
directly related to projects with an Energy development or innovation focus.

Grant funds will also be eligible to support road mapping/plans of action for enhancing energy
manufacturing supply chains at major economic development sites in the region.

B. Energy Ingenuity — Execution Grants
Grant and loan incentive awards, within the limits of availal nding, will be considered to aid
in the implementation of staff recommended energy p{éjects f—unds can be used for reascnable
costs allowed by Code that are necessary for successful project |mp mentation. A minimum of
1:1 match of funds is required, with hlgher Ieveis of match expected forlarger grant requests.

For projects with an identified revenue stream, the Commission wili consider-assistance through
project financing with low-interest loans, creation o 1oan-los "r_eserve funds, "l'n:”_e_ntlve to private
business for project outcome performance, and other sms needed to bastmove a
project forward, as long as total liability for the Commission is clear and capped.

on. ! Lost- -effective, scalable energy deployment projects for
proven technologles and offer op ortunltles for scalability. Priority of grant investments will be
for capital costs and: capttalizable xpenses that can be awarded under the Commission’s
Restricted Funds. “Scalable” for the purposes of this RFP is defined as not in funding or R&D
phase.

***Research & Development projects are ineligible for funding at this time. ***

Energy Manufacturing incentives
The Commission will consider TROF-like incentives for energy manufacturing and supply chain
companies that commit to job creation and private capital investment in the Tobacco Region.

Energy Workforce Initiatives

The Commission will consider funding workforce related proj'écts that do not otherwise meet the
guidelines for TRRC's Competltlve Education program (example: energy workforce needs
assessments).

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP — Page 8

-B66—



Requirements
Depending on the nature of the project, Energy Ingenuity Fund proposals require one or more of
the following documents (refer to Section IIl. Required Documents of this RFP):
Service Area and Project Location Map (required for all)
Master Plan with Targeted Sectors (required for all)
Fee Estimate or Proposal from Engineer (required for A&E and/or construction)
Construction Cost Estimate from A&E or Contractor (required for construction)
Phase 1 Environmental Assessment Report (required for brownfield sites)
Virginia Business Ready Site Assessment Report (required for sites assessed by VEDP)
Cash Flow Analysis with Rate Structure (required for utility infrastructure)

YVVVVVVYY

Outputs/Deliverables : .
Applicants must identify the deliverables expected to result from the direct use of TRRC grant and
matching funds. Deliverables are accomplished during thie grant period and are directly related to
use of grant funds. Examples of project deliverables for Energy inC|l]dE'

]

Change in industrial site’s energy readmess to improve marketablllty to targeted sectors
Feasibility Study or Implementation Pian

Workforce Needs-Assessment Report

Number of Jobs Created

Amount of Capital InVestment -

Product or Service Deployment (please gwe a speclflc/detalled response based on type
and function of product/service) -

YVVVVVYY

Outcomes a B T

Applicants for Energy Ingenulty Executlon grants must estimate aggregate energy related economic
development outcomes that are pro;ected result to result within FIVE years following the grant end date.
Applicants will choose the relevant outcorlne measures. based on the project and include an outcomes
narrative to explain the figures prowded Please see the followmg logic model for examples of outcomes.
Note that outcomes are not limited to- t\hose in this model (additional example: output — scalable energy
productejnstal[ed outcome — grid resnllency |mprovemept)

Energy Capacity and
Innovation

Investment Strategy

» ‘ 3 Increase in coverage and
Pro']ect Outputs capacity for energy

needs of industry

Capital
investment

i Increase in

bonatide
prospect
activity
and
ANNOUNce-
ments

Increase in

Targeted Outcomes [Reaiiiss
creation and

expansion

Decrease in M y Increase regional
local pHuagsh capital assets,

unemploy- W . : 3 revenues and
ment M- economic base

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP — Page 9

—-67—



lll.  REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR FULL PROPOSAL

Depending on the nature of the project, applicants may be required to submit several other
documents, so the Commission and its staff are fully informed about all pertinent aspects of the
project, As these will vary by project type, this list is not exhaustive, and applicants should
submit any other documents they believe will assist during the review process.

MAIN PROPOSAL ATTACHMENTS
A. Project Description
B. Service Area and Prdject Location Map

C. Biographical Sketches for lead personnel on project

D. Letters of Support - Applicants are encouraged to provide letters from project partners,
beneficiaries and others that demonstrate the commitment of resources to the project or
document demand. Redundant form letters of support are discouraged. -

FIN_ANCIAL ATTACHMENTS ¢

E. Line-ltem Detailed Budget - All reqUeétg must include a line-item detailed budget with details
on how Commission resources and matt:hing funds will be ﬂsed A template available in the
online application may be used to prowde this information. Other line- item detail formats
will be accepted prowded they contaln all pertlnent lnformatlon

F. Cost Estimate from Engmeer or Constructlon Contractor Required for all A&E and
construction pro;ects A current written cost estlmate from a licensed architect, engineer or
construction contractor must be provudecl

G. Detailed Equipment List and Equipm_é\ht\_Quotes_— Requests for the purchase of equipment,
must provide_é detailed equipment list and quotes from product vendors.

ADDITIONAL ATTACHMENTS = BASED ON TYPE OF PROJECT.

H. Feasibility Study - A feasibility study or similar analysis that demonstrates that the proposed
business concept is technically and economically feasible should be submitted, if applicable.
This analysis evaluates the practicality and viability of an idea and should answer the question
“should we proceed with the proposed project idea”.

|_. Economic Impact Study - The potential economic impact of the project to the region must be
documented. While the Commission is primarily interested in the direct impact, estimates of
the indirect and induced impacts may be provided.

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP — Page 10

—-h8—



J. Master Plan — A master plan or similar information which describes the project’s total
development strategy is required for certain projects. The requirement for a master plan
typically applies to applications requesting construction funding for industrial development
projects, regional tourism investments such as the development of a regional trail system, or
other projects with multiple stages of implementation. '

K. Inventory of Available Sites — Required for investments in new industrial sites.
A complete listing of all publicly owned sites located in the applicant locality and the
surrounding region must be provided for new industrial site funding requests.

L. Virginia Business Ready Sites Program Assessment Report.= Required for industrial sites
assessed by the Virginia Economic Development Partnership. A copy of the Virginia Business
Ready Site Assessment for industrial site properties; with the most recent Tier
characterization certification letter, if Tier level hastbeen updated since the assessment.

M. Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment — Required for brownfield site applications. The
Phase 1 ESA will assess if current or historic property use have impacted the soil or
groundwater and to identify threats to the environment gn'd/or human health.

N. Preliminary Engineering Report (é)r P[éliminary Architectural Report -- Applicénts are
requested to provide preliminary engineering reports, preliminary architectural reports,
building plans, or other relevant A&E documents wit__h for property or buildings.

0. Business Plan or Operating Plan A Business Pldn is required for applications with a private
beneficiary. An Operatmg Plan is requrred for proposed new facilities. The required
Business Plan or Operatmg Plan, must describe the operational requn’ements for the new
busmess or-facility, and how. those requ1rements wnII be met.

I
9 .

P.. Ope’rating Budget and Pro Forma — Required fqr'utiﬁties infrastructure applications.  All
requests for projects that will have ohgoing operating costs must demonstrate how operation
of the new or. expanded program or facility is expected to be sustained beyond a start-up
period of no more than thrée \iears An operating budget or pro forma with revenues and
expenses must be provided showmg projections for how the program/facilities will be
supported.

Q. Marketing Plan - A marketmg plan to describe the project’s target market and the plan to
capture that market must be described in the application, if applicable.

R. Program Guidelines & Sub-Awards — When the project will result in sub-awarding of TRRC
funding to other recipients, the details of the sub-award arrangements including a draft of the
proposed contract agreement must be provided.

S. Operating Agreements — Agreements, memoranda of understanding, contracts, or similar
documents between project partners are required whenever there are multiple beneficiaries
of the project. The agreement must detail each entity’s responsibilities.

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP — Page 11

_69_.



/

T. Performance Agreements — Provide terms for private sector performance agreements.

U. Cash Flow Analysis with Rate Structure — Required for utility infrastructure construction. For
projects that will generate revenues, applicants must provide (i) a detailed cash flow analysis
. that shows a baseline of current operations and expected changes to revenues and
“expenditures if an award is approved, and (ii) a proposed or currently adopted rate structure
for new and/or existing customers. Proposed or planned changes to the rate structure that
will result from and/or is necessary to support the project requested for support from the
Commission must be identified.

IV. REQUIREMENTS OF FUNDING

-A. Grants and Loans

This RFP seeks applications for both grants and loans. Staff will typically recommend that loans
be awarded to projects that are expected to generate sufficieft revenues to service debt even
when the application sought a grant, TRRC offers competitive interest rates and will entertain
flexible loan terms, such as forbearance perlods during construction or startup periods and
interest only payments. In addition, the Commlssmn will also entertain applications for a
combination of a grant and loan as part of the sameaward.

TRRC loans are administéred by either the Vlrgmla Resources Authorlty (VRA) or the Virginia
Small Business Fmaqce Authority. (VSBFA) and prospectlve loan recipients must provide any
additional documentation that VRA VSBFA or TRRC requests

B. Award Information

Itis antlcnpated that the Commlssmn will approve multlple awards—including grants and loans—
as a result of this RFP. After the Commission makes award decisions, grant agreements will be
issued for the amounts and with any conditions as approved by the Commission.

The Commission will typically uée its standard restricted or unrestricted grant agreements for
selected projects. All grantees are requ1red to follow the Commission’s Funding Policies as a
condition of the award. The s’tandard grant agreement and the Funding Policies are available on
the Commission’s webpage. The Commission reserves the right to update its standard grant
agreement and Funding Policies at any time. '

C. Payment of Grant Funds

Payment of grant funds will be subject to the terms of the grant agreement and will be
disbursed on a reimbursement basis. Expenses incurred prior to the award date are not eligible
for reimbursement. The standard reimbursement period is quarterly, unless otherwise agreed to
by Commission staff. The grantee is required to provide appropriate documentation of the
expenditures and use of required matching funds for the project. The Commission’s Funding
Policies contain additional information that applicants should review closely.

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP — Page 12

=70-



D. Reporting

Grantees must provide annual reports on the financial and quantitative progress made toward
completion of the project’s milestones and outputs and provide a narrative discussion of
progress. A final report including a narrative on the success of the project, attainment of
proposed outputs, and a description of the long-term expectations and achievements for the |
project is required at the close of the project. The Commission will not process the final
payment request until all the grantee has satisfied all reporting requirements.

Additionally, grantees must provide any additional or interim reporting information the

Commission may request to ensure the provisions of the grant agreement are properly carried

out, admmlstered and enforced. 2

"E. Assets : (

As a condition of awarding a grant, the Commission will have a claim to all property and assets in
which Commission grant funds wer¢ invested and the Commission must approve any
conveyances of such property and assets. This applies to investments in real property,
intellectual property, and equipment purchases greater than 55 000. The details of these
requirements are mcluded in the grant agreement and the Commlssmn s Funding Policies.

V.  ATTACHMENTS
> ' Attachment A= EV\aluainQ Criteria

» Attachment B — Tobacco Region Map of Eligible Localities

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP — Page 13

-71-



Attachment A

TRRC's Southwest and Southern Virginia
Reglonal Economic Development Program Evaluation Crlterla

OVERALL PROJECT EVALUATIGN (70 POINTS) :
Projects will be evaluated In each area lfsted be!ow for a tota! of 70 pnints far avmll evafuah‘on. jl

Assessment of Need & Eligibility (15 points) :
Problem / Need - Clearly Identified problem or needto be addressed. (5)

Assessment of Need & Planning - Significance and sti‘ategic fit of project to the community, as
demonstrated by assessment of need or opportunity, and evidence of stakeholder input and support
in project design. (5)

TRRC Priority - Fit with the Tobacco Region Rewtalization Commrss;on s mission, Strateglc Plan,
investment categories and fundlng prLorltles (5)
Methodology & Project Feasibility (25 pointé) !

Methodology - Logical and feasible approach to addressing object'ive and meeting investment
metrics/output dellverable ob]ectlves that will beneflt economic rewtahzatlon in the region. (10)

Timeline & Mllestones Pr0ject descrlbes how objectives will be ach|eved under a realistic work plan.
Progress steps and estimated dates for compietion prowded (5} ,

Project Team Experience and demonstrated expertlse of project team for accomplishing objectives.
(5) ( ‘

Feasibility - Focus of project-planning, and feaS|b|hty to accompilsh direct outcomes benefiting
economic revrtailzatlon in the Tobacco Region. (5)

Project Budget and Match (15 poinfs) ;

Budget Detail - Budget is re_ason’a.b‘le: realistic, and cost-effective. Planned use of funds supported by a
budget narrative, and with quotes and estimates. (5)

Match - Leveraging of non-TRRC resources is evident with appropriate sources and amounts
of cash commitments and other funding, and in-kind match contributions identified. (5)

Additional Match - Leveraging of non-TRRC resources exceeds minimum 1:1 requirement. (5)

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP — Page 14

_7 2_.



Sustainability for Long-Term Success (15 pbints)
Sustainability - Demonstrated financial plans with cash-flow analysis and pro- forma budgets. Clear
plan for financial sustainability and ability to maintain effort beyond the term of grant funding. (10)

Long Term Impact on Region & Communities - Regional cooperation and financial
collaboration. Likelihood for benefits of the project to accrue regionally and/or serve as a model for
other communities. (5)

INAESTMENT DLITCOMES RECL "] nN VIETRICE R DEINERARIEC
INVESTMENT OUTCOMES RES LTING FROM OUTPUT METRICS & DELIVERZ 2\

'relevant Investment Categor:

development and Energy Innovation in the Tobq_ co Reglon This may mclude potential for a strong
return on investment for the TRRC, support and |nv01vement of/prwate sector E ergy deployment and
Energy innovation in the project, likelihood of success i ‘achieving targeted milestones and
deliverables, and ability to be scalab]e((mthm 2 years of d;:“pioyment will be con5|dered

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP — Page 15

73—



Attachment B

Counties & Cities Eligible for Tobacco Commission Funding

The service area for the Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission includes 40-
tobacco-dependent localities in the Southern and Southwest areas of Virginia. Eligible
applicants serving these localities are éliéib]e to apply to the Commission’s grant programs
for projects that will enhance the economic growth and development of the region.

SOUTHWEST AREA

Counties:
Bland '
Buchanan
Carroll, "
Dickenson
Floyd
Grayson
Lee

Russell
Scott

Smyth
Tazewell
Washington
Wise

Wythe

Cities:
Bristol
Galax
Norton

Counties:

-Amelia

Appomattox
Bedford,
Brunswick

" Buckingham
_Campbell

Charlotte
Cumberland -
Dinwiddie
Franklin
Greensville
Halifax
Henry
Lunenburg
Mecklenburg
Nottoway
Patrick
Pittsylvania
Prince Edward
Sussex

~74-

SOUTHERN AREA

Cities:
Danville
Emporia
Martinsville

DRAFT - FY24 TRRC Energy Ingenuity Fund Program Guidelines and RFP — Page 16



Commonwealth of Virginia
Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission

FY2024 Agribusiness Fur"ld_P'r"ogram

GUIDELINES & REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

Application Due Date

—-75-—



Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
FY2024 Agribusiness Program

GUIDELINES & REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

GENERAL PROGRAM INFORMATION

A. Purpose & Background

B. Investment Categories - Funding Priorities

C. Eligibility - Eligible Applicants, Matching Funds, Use of Fundlng
D. Application and Submission information
E. Evaluation

F. TRRC Staff Contact Information

GUIDELINES

Eligible Investment Strategies (@

D. Reporting E

n Vaiue-Added Processing, Aggr_ atlon, and Marketmg Fa"”' o
= Development of IVIarket Opportun|t|es i

REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOI ULL PROPOSAL

REQUIREMENTS OF FUNDI
A. Grants and Loan
B. Award
C. Payment of G

. Attachment A’ '“'Evaiuatlon:"\ :
3, Attachment B - Eligible Countles & Cities for Tobacco Commission Funding

10

12

14

FY24 TRRC Agriculture Fund Guidelines and RFP / Page 2

.....7 6....



I GENERAL PROGRAM INFORMATION

A. Purpose & Background

The Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission (“TRRC” or “Commission”) was established by
the Virginia General Assembly in 1999, as a political subdivision of the Commonwealth. The
Commission makes investments to revitalize and diversify the economy of the region it supports.
Projects selected for funding include initiatives that will measurably advance the Commission’s
priorities as a direct result of project success. '

The Agribusiness Fund Program’s Guidelines and Request for Proposals (together, “RFP”) are
issued to solicit applications through a competitive process to 'ésfeblish grant and loan
agreements for economic development projects in the regiéon.

Funding will be considered for projects promoting e_gd‘hpmie g‘rthh and development within
the Southern and Southwest Virginia area of Virginia’S-Tobaccq Region. Refer to Attachment B -
Eligible Counties & Cities for Tobacco Commission Funding on page XX of.this RFP.

g A

Approximately $X million is available for awards from the Agribusiness Fund .Prqgram. The
application deadline is 00-00-0000.
’ {
A Pre-Application detailing the proposed project is required and serves as an opportunity for
Commission staff to conduct a preliminary.; assessment of the likelihood of the project’s eligibility
for funding, and to provide meaningful feedback to applicants before they prepare a full
application package. Candldates will be nOtlerd by Comm:ssnon staff if their pre-application is
selected to move on'to the full apphcatlon process ‘
Full applications are evaIUated by'Commission staff and funding recommendations are put
forward to the full Commlssmn for further discussion and approval at its spring, fall and winter
meetmgs '

B. Funding Priorities

The Commission’s € Current Strateg;: PIan identifies its current funding priorities. Logic models are
included therein for the ‘types of prOJects that the Commission will consider funding.

=Y

Details on priorities and the types of projects to be considered under this RFP are provided in
Section Il. Guidelines. All applicants must clearly articulate how the project relates to the goals
of the program. All projects must clearly define outputs that will occur during the project
period and directly relate to the use of Commission funds and matching funds. Outputs are
specific to each project. '

. FY24 TRRC Agriculture Fund Guidelines and RFP / Page 3

-T77-



C. Eligibility — Eligible Applicants, Matching Funds, Uses of Funding
Eligible Applicants

Applications will only be accepted from governmental entities and non-profit organizations
located in and/or providing economic revitalization programs, services, or facilities in the
Tobacco Region. Eligible applicants including the following:

e Governmental Entities - Governmental entities within the Tobacco Region., including
towns, cities, and counties; local or regional industrial or economic development
authorities; regional authorities, and ather governmental units,

» Non-Profit Organizations - Incorporated non- profit ofganizations designated as tax-

exempt by the federal Internal Revenue Service.

Guidelines for applications submitted by regional partnershlps an

or projects benefiting for-
profit entities, are in Section Ili ofthe Comm;ssm”'

‘Funding Pohc&esf’d'scussed below:

Use of Funds by For-Profit Entities — Appllcatlonsﬁ_that W|Il beneflt a private.entity must have a

public purpose and be made hy one of the eligibl ":"appl ts identified in th"e prev:ous section.
The following must be descr;bedj'"’ _app!lcatlon
®»

for Applicants & Gra'n ”"_es (ReVI

d June 2020) (“Funding Policies”) has information on general
ineligible uses of funds, s ype of expenses not eligible for reimbursement, acceptable
expense documentation for-seeking reimbursement, match documentation requirements, and
other important details about the Tobacco Commission’s grant administration policies.

Matching Funds

As required by the Code of Virginia, all requests for grant funds require at least dollar-for-dollar

{1:1) matching funds, with no more than 25% of the match requirement from “in-kind” sources.

Loan requests do not have a match requirement. £xpenses already included in an annual budget
. such as personnel and other operating costs will count toward the 25% In-Kind limit.

. ' FY24 TRRC Agriculture Fund Guidelines and RFP / Page 4

-78-



Applicants for grant awards must submit details on the nature, source, and timing of match
contributions necessary for meeting the 1:1 match requirement. Once secured, matching funds
must be committed to the project and available as needed and must not be conditioned or
encumbered in any way that may preclude their use for the project during the grant period.
Applicants should provide a commitment letter or equivalent document signed by an authorized
representative of the organization providing matching funds to document each source of match.

If the Commission awards a grant to an applicant who has not secured acceptable matching
funds at the time of award, the applicant will have up to 12 months from the date of the award

to secure matching funds or else the Commission may rescind the award and de-obligate its
funds.

D. Application and Submission Information

Pre-application proposals for consideration in (MONTH) 2024 must be submitted by mldnlght on
"(DATE) through the Commission’s online appllcatlon portal ‘
https://vtc.smartsimple.com/s Login.jsp.

A completed pre-application is REQUIRED for all Agribusiness funding r'equ‘esf.s and is in the
grant portal as “Agribusiness/Pre-Application — Southern Région” or “Agribusiness/Pre-
Application — Southwest Region,” dépendmg on the location of the project. In addition to text

fields of the application, up to 10 pages of addrt:onal pro;ect description may be submitted as an
attachment. -

Based on the information provided in the Agrfbusinesﬁ/Pre—Ap,blication applicants will be invited

to submit a full funding request. Pre apphcatfons mwted to move forward to full application will
submit by (DATE} ( - ‘

Applicants must certlfy they.have read this RFP and. the Commission’s Funding Policies; that the
information in their apphcatlons is true and. correct; and that documentation for any claims and
representatlons made can be made available upon request from Commission staff. The
certifidation must be made by an authorlzed representative of the applicant organization.

All information. expressIv reqmred by this RFP must be included. Proposals which are
substantially lncomplete or Iack kev information, will be considered nonresponsive. These
proposals will be declmed for re\new and will not be presented to the committee.

i
]
i

E. Evaluation

The Commission’s Southern or Southwest Virginia Committees will evaluate applications
submitted in response to this RFP, depending on the location of the project. Staff
recommendations to the Committee will be based upon requirements in this RFP and the
Evaluation Scoring Criteria provided in Attachment A. Approval of funding is at the sole
discretion of the Commission. The Commission reserves the right to cancel this RFP, to not
proceed with any or all applications, to condition its.award on additional terms and conditions,
or to award a loan to an applicant who sought a grant.

& FY24 TRRC Agriculture Fund Guidelines and RFP / Page 5

_79_



F. TRRC Staff Contact Information

TRRC staff are available to assist with applications. For technical assistance with logging in or
setting up an account with the Commission’s online grants portal, please contact:

e Suzette Patterson, Grants System Manager (Richmond, VA)
(804) 894-9662, spatterson@revitalizeva.org

Contact TRRC's grants staff for assistance with project design or to discuss a pre-application:

e Sarah Capps, Southern Regional Director (Rocky Mount, VA)
(540) 483-0179, ext. 2168, scapps@revitalizeva.org

e Sara Williams, Southwest Regional Director (Abingd"o’n,fVA)
(276) 619-4235, swilliams@revitalizeva.org & :

e Vicki Humphreys, Grant Programs Directpr’“(Richmond, VA)

(804) 894-9658, vhumphreys@revitalizeva.org

.  GUIDELINES

€

The Commission will consider awarding"grantS'and loans for agribusiness projects that create or
expand market opportunities for regior"\alkproducé'rs and that result in a quantifiable increase in
net farm income. The three primary areas of interest to the Commlssmn are the establishment
of value-added processmg, aggregation, and marketmg facilities, and the development of
emerging and new market opportunmes to dlverSIfy and enhance the region’s agricultural
economy. L N | 1’ 5 S

Priority will be given to regional facilities serving or benefiting multiple producers in more than
one locality. Investments will support increasing sales of agricultural commodities and
agricultural food pr_odiicts from the region. Projects must clearly demonstrate the identified
need or oppo[tunity for a new or expanding market that brings economic value to the region.

A. Objectives |
o (reateor expand market opportunltles for Tobacco Region producers and that result in a
quantifiable increase:in net farm income

e leverage Federal, State and_ prlvate grant opportunities for agribusiness development
e Diversify and enhance the region’s agricultural economy
e Provide an enabling environment for innovation in the agricultural entrepreneurial ecosystem

B. Major Funding and Technical Assistance Partners

e Virginia Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (VDACS)

e United States Departiment of Agriculture (USDA)
“e Virginia Foundation for Agriculture, Innovation and Rural Sustainability (VA-FAIRS)
"o Virginia Cooperative Extension '
"~ e Virginia Small Business Financing Authority-

. FY24 TRRC Agriculture Fund Guidelines and RFP / Page 6

-80-



C. Eligible Investments

Value-Added Processing, Aggregation, and Marketing Facilities

Value-added processing, aggregation and marketing facilities add value by changing the
characteristics of the agricultural commodity to meet market demand. Applicants will use the
Agribusiness application and select one of the following Agribusiness Investment strategies:

{i) Commercial Agriculture Processing

(i) Community Food Processing

(it} Farmers Markets

(iv) Multi-Purpose Agriculture Centers
Producer Collaboration & Cooperatives: The Commission’s pr_ié_ﬁ:ity"is o invest in value-added
projects that support producers working in partnership th producer-based business,
agricultural association, or a member-owned cooperatgv_é hat:benefits multiple producers.
Funding limits depend upon whether the facility is tely owned and operated.

Private Ownership:

¢ Grants for Capital Projects - Grant requests for up to 25% of the total.capital costs for
equipment for value-added processing facnlltles operated by a for—pr fit-business whose.
primary function involves the: production, pro s mg, or marketing 'ofjagncuiturai
products. Applications must b veligible applicant. The Commission’s
funding will require a performan ‘ agreement undei wvhich the company will be required
to repay grant funds if it does no eet certa performance targets.

Public or Non- Prof't whership: : o
¢ Grants for Caplt | Pro;ects Value- added facilities owned by a government entity or a

start-up or expa alue-added processihg facilities benefiting Tobacco Region
producers regardless of public or private ownership. Loans will be recommended for
projects where there is an identifiable revenue stream sufficient to repay the loan.

Development of Market Opportunities

Projects that diversify and enhance the region’s agribusiness economy with a focus on new or
‘expanded market opportunities are eligible for funding. Applicants will use the Agribusiness
application and select one of the following Agribusiness investment strategies:

(i} - Wholesale & Retail Cooperative Marketing
{if) Crop Demonstrations
(iii) Cost-Share Programs

s FY24 TRRC Agriculture Fund Gdidelines and RFP / Page 7

_81......



Wholesale and Retail Cooperative Marketing < $20,000 grants - Small matching grants of up to
$20,000 to support marketing initiatives focused on obtaining access to new or expanding
markets 1o increase agricultural product sales revenues will be considered. All projects must
benefit multiple producers. Eligible projects include those that focus on development of
institutional or commercial market opportunities; creation of on-line sales systems connecting .
_buyers to sellers; targeted marketing strategies for specialty crops; and creation of broker or

expediter services where a third party connects guality agrlcukture products from several farms
to new market.opportunities.

Crop Demonstration Projects - Projects that assist producers in the development and
demonstration of high-value, low acreage crops (defined as those that have a higher net return
per acre compared to conventional commodity crops) will be "nsadered Projects seeking funds
for basm research activities will not be considered.

Cost Share Programs - Cost-share programs that focus'on i;fan5|t|on|ng producers into alternative
agriculture enterprises or implementing new best practices, directly resulting in an increase to farmer

" income, will be considered. Projects must be regio ‘benefit a multi-col ty area. Cost share
incentive payments will be limited to no more thaf 33% of capital costs or th Mcosts of contracted services.

Projects seeking funds for recurring farm expenses ar

All cost share program proposals must include the fo!lowm
- Education component with re‘ rements for particzpatton
- Proposed cost-share program g ﬁes with eligible costs and evaluation criteria,
- Analysis of the return on mvestment to producers for |m ementing the practice(s),

¢ Have a.clearly |dent|f|ed marke dpportunity,

1ge | nvestment in farm operations or agribusiness facilities, and
o Will result in:measurable increases to net farm income.

Depending on the nature of the project, applications for Agribusiness funding will require the
following information (refer to.Section Iil. Required Documents of this RFP):

Service Area and Project Location Map (required for all)

Feasibility Study or similar analysis {required for publicly owned value-added facilities)
Business Plan or Operating Plan {required for value-added facilities)

Operating Budget and Pro Forma (required with Business Plan or Operating Plan)
Cost Estimate from Engineer or Construction Contractor (required for construction)
Detailed Equipment List and Equipment Quote (required for equipment purchases) '
Marketing Plan (required for wholesale and retail cooperative marketing projects)
Operating Agreements (required for public-private partnerships})

Program Guidelines & Sub-Awards (required for cost-share programs)

VY VVVYVVVYY

s FY24 TRRC Agricuiture Fund Guidelines and RFP / Page 8

-82-



Outputs / Deliverables — Agribusiness
Applicants must identify the deliverables expected to result from the direct use of TRRC grant and

matching funds. Deliverables are accomplished during the grant period and are directly related to
use of grant funds. Examples of Agribusiness output metrics follow:

e Number of agricultural producers benefitting

e Total dollar value of Tobacco Region agricultural products to be used annually

e Increase in annual sales revenue for value-added agriculture products

e Average (per farm), and aggregate annual increase to net farm income

e - Sales revenue for value-added agriculture products resulting from the project

e Number of new jobs created by new or expanding agriculture based business
‘e [ncrease in taxable private capital investment -

These are the typical project metrics for estimating oufputs of agnbusmess projects. Applicants
are expected to identify the project outputs that are most apphcable to their project.

/

Outcomes (a=y \

Applicants for Agribusiness grants must estlmate aggregate agribusiness related economic
development outcomes that are projected result to result W|th|n FIVE years followmg the grant
end date. Applicants will choose the .relevant outcome measures based on the project and include

.an outcomes narrative to explain the flgures prowded Please see the following Ioglc model for
examples of outcomes.

Investment Strategy Agubusiness

§ Crops and Livestock: |
Quantity, Yield, | e : Revenue Growth,

|
| Part c :
PrOJECt 0utputs I Acreage, Level of LR Increase in Net Farm
‘ Producers : ey ;
Adoption by § Income

Producers

1 Increase agricultural Increase sustainable
i
and hvestock i apribusmess and
production i £xports

Increase product
diversity

Targeted Outcomes

The Commission at its discretion may entertain other types of projects provided they meet all
other requirements of this RFP, are in alignment with TRRC's Strategic Plan, and address critical
economic development barriers affecting the Tobacco Region. Applicants who wish to bring a
project outside of the scope of this RFP must contact TRRC’s grants staff in advance.

- FY24 TRRC Agriculture Fund Guidelines and RFP / Page 9

—-83-



lll. REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR FULL PROPOSAL

Depending on the nature of the project, applicants may be required to submit several other
documents so the Commission and its staff are fully informed about all pertinent aspects of the
project. As these will vary by project type, this list is not exhaustive and applicants should submit
any other documents they believe will assist during the review process.

MAIN PROPOSAL ATTACHMENTS

A. Project Description

B. Service Area and Project Location Map

. Biographical Sketches for lead personnel on proj

E. Line-ltem Detailed Budget - Al
supportmg detalls on proposed p

F.
=3p'"reliminary engineering reports, other
ans, etc. with the application.
G. Equibment Quotes — Requests for the purchase of

Jetailed equipment list and quotes from product vendors.

ADDITIONAL ATTACHM ENTS —~ BASED ON TYPE OF PROJECT

H. Business Plan or Operating Plan - A Business Plan or Oherating Plan that describes the
operatiohal requirements for the project and how those requirements will be met should
he submitted, if applicable.

l. Operating Budget and Pro Forma - All requests for projects that will have ongoing
operating costs must demonstrate how operation of the new or expanded program or
facility is expected to be sustained beyond a start-up period of no more than three years.
An operating budget or pro forma with revenues and expenses must be provided
showing projections for how the program/facilities will be supported.

. FY24 TRRC Agriculture Fund Guidelines and RFP / Page 10

-8 44—



J. Feasibility Study - A feasibility study or similar analysis that demonstrates that the
proposed business concept is technically and economically feasible should be submitted,
if applicable. This analysis evaluates the practicality and viability of an idea and should
answer the question “should we proceed with the proposed project idea”.

K. Economic Impact Study - The potential economic impact of the project to the region
must be documented. While the Commission is primarily interested in the direct impact,
estimates of the indirect and induced impacts may be provided.

L. Marketing Plan - A marketing plan to describe the project’s target market and the plan
to capture that market must be described in the appl!_ca’;cio,n, if applicable.

M. Performance Agreements — Provide terms for private sector performance agreements.
: ) ; e

N. Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment =~ Req"uired for brownfield site applications.
O. virginia Business Ready Sites Program Assessment Report — A copy of the Virginia

Business Ready Site Assessment for industrial site properties; with the most recent Tier
characterization certification I'ette__r, if Tier level has been updated since the assessment.

P. Operating Agreements - Agreeménts (Memoranda of Understanding, contracts, or
similar documents) between project partners are reqmred whenever there are multiple
beneficiaries of the prOJect

~ Q. Program Guidelines & Sub"‘-_A\hiards - Applications requesting support for incentive
programs (e.g., agritulture cost share or buéiness development community business
launch programs) must provide a copy of the proposed Program Guidelines. This will
describe the governance of the program lncludmg its eligibility criteria, funding

‘Ilmltations, and program requirements. When the project will result in sub-awarding of
TRRC funding to other recipients, the details of the sub-award arrangements including a
draft of'the proposed contract agreement must be provided.

. FY24 TRRC Agriculture Fund Guidelines and RFP / Page 11

_85_



IV. REQUIREMENTS OF FUNDING

A. Grants and Loans

This RFP seeks applications for both grants and loans. Staff will typically recommend that loans
be awarded to projects that are expected to generate sufficient revenues to service debt even
when the application sought a grant. TRRC offers competitive interest rates and will entertain
flexible loan terms, such as forbearance periods during construction or startup periods and
interest only payments. In addition, the Commission will also entertain appl:catlons fora
combination of a grant and loan as part of the same award.

TRRC loans are administered by either the Virginia Resour_ce’é Autﬁority (VRA) or the Virginia
Small Business Finance Authority (VSBFA), and prospeqtivé loan recipients must provide any
additional documentation that VRA, VSBFA or TRRC requests.

B. Award Information 4
It is anticipated that the Commission will approve multiple awards—including grants and loans—
as a result of this RFP. After the Commission makes award decisions, grant agreements will be
issued for the amounts and with any conditions as approved by the Commission.

The Commission will typically use its standard restricted or unrestricted grant agreements for
selected projects. All grantees are required to follow the Commission’s Funding Policies as a
condition of the award. The standard grant agreement and the Fundmg Policies are available on
the Commission’s webpage The Comm|55|on resefves the right to update its standard grant
agreement and Funding PoI|<:|es at anly time.

C. Paynient of Grant Fu‘nd’s

Paymént of grant funds will be subject to the terms of the grant agreement and will be
disbursed on'a reimbursement basis. Expenses incurred prior to the award date are not eligible
for relmbursement The standard relmbursement period is quarterly, unless otherwise agreed to
by Commission staff The grantee is requwed to provide appropriate documentation of the
expenditures and use of requlred matchmg funds for the project. The Commission’s Funding
Policies contain addltlonal mfofmatlon that applicants should review closely.

D. Reporting

Grantees must provide annual reports on the financial and quantitative progress made toward
completion of the project’s milestones and outputs and provide a narrative discussion of
progress. A final report including a narrative on the success of the project, attainment of
proposed outputs, and a description of the long-term expectations and achievements for the

- FY24 TRRC Agriculture Fund Guidelines and RFP / Page 12

_.86_



project is required at the close of the project. The Commission will not process the final
payment request until all the grantee has satisfied all reporting requirements.

Additionally, grantees must provide any additional or interim reporting information the
Commission may request to ensure the provisions of the grant agreement are properly carried
out, administered and enforced.

E. Assets

As a condition of awarding a grant, the Commission will have a claim to all property and assets in
which Commission grant funds were invested and the Commission must approve any
conveyances of such property and assets. This applies to invéstments in real property,
intellectual property, and equipment purchases greater,tﬁan SS,OOO.,The details of these
requirements are included in the grant agreement and'fher Cbmmig,sion’s Funding Policies.

V. ATTACHMENTS
» Attachment A — Evaluatioh\Criteria
» Attachment B —-Tobagco Ré'gi“on Map of Eligible Localities

|
|

w FY24 TRRC Agriculture Fund Guidelines and RFP / Page 13

-87-



Attachment A

TRRC's Southwest and Southern Virginia
Regional Economic Development Program - Evaluation Criteria

OVERALL PROJECT EVALUATION (70 POINTS) ‘
Projects wm be evaluated in each area listed below fora totai of 70 polnts far overall emﬂunﬂon.

Assessment of Need & Eligibility (15 points) y
Problem / Need - Clearly Identified problem or need to be addressed (5)

Assessment of Need & Planning - Significance and stfateglc f|t of pro;ect to the community, as

demonstrated by assessment of need or opportumty, and evidence of stakeholder input and support
in project design. (5)

TRRC Priority - Fit with the Tobacco Reglon Rewtallzatlon Commlssmn S mission, Strateglc Plan,
investment categories and funding pl‘lOl’ltles (5)
Methodology & Project Feasibility (25 poih_ts)

Methodology - Logical and feasible approach to addressing objec‘tive and meeting investment
metrics/output deiwerable objectwes that will beneflt economic revitalization in the region. (10)

Timeline & Mllestones PrOJect descrlbes how objectlves will be achieved under a realistic work plan.
Progress steps and esttmated dates for completlon prowded (5)

Project Teami - Experlence and demonstrated expertlse of project team for accomplishing objectives.
(5) : -

Feasibility - Focus of pl'OjeCt plannmg, and feasibility to accomplish direct outcomes benefiting
economic rewtahzetlon in the Tobacco Region. (5)
Project Budget and Match (15 points) ‘l

Budget Detail - Budget is reésonéb[e; realistic and cost-effective. Planned use of funds supported by a
budget narrative, and with quotes and estimates. (5)

Match - Leveraging of non-TRRC resources is evident with appropriate sources and amounts
of cash commitments and other funding, and in-kind match contributions identified. (5)

Additional Match - Leveraging of non-TRRC resources exceeds minimum-ltl requirement. (5)

s FY24 TRRC Agriculture Fund Guidelines and RFP / Page 14

—-88-—



Sustainability for Long-Term Success (15 points)
Sustainability - Demonstrated financial plans with cash-flow analysis and pro- forma budgets. Clear
plan for financial sustainability and ability to maintain effort beyond the term of grant funding. (10)

Long Term Impact on Region & Communities - Regional cooperation and financial

collaboration. Likelihood for benefits of the project to accrue regionally and/or serve as a model for
other communities. (5)

NV/E! ‘

STIMIENT OUTCOMES RESULTING FROM OUTPL

ofect wff' bE ed up to 3 pints, under the relevant Investment Category below:

AGRIBUSINESS

Ability to create agrlbusmess opportunities and tc{ i s}rease net farm mcome\wnh an emphasis on

systemic or collective benefit. Evidence of produc""e Interest and market opportunity.

- A 4
N Ny

w FY24 TRRC Agriculture Fund Guidelines and RFP / Page 15

-89—-



Attachment B

Counties & Cities Eligible for Tobacco Commission Funding

The service area for the Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission includes 40-
tobacco-dependent localities in the Southern and Southwest areas of Virginia. Eligible

applicants serving these localities are eligible to apply to the Commission’s grant programs
for projects that will enhance the economic growth and development of the region.

Bland

Buchanari
Carrol]l
Dickenson
Floyd
Grayson
Lee
Russell
Scott
Smyth
Sussex
Tazewell .
~ Washington
Wise
Wythe

Cities:
Bristol
Galax
Norton

So

Amelia

Appomattox
Bedford

3 Brunswick
‘Buckingham

fCampbell

_/Charlotte

Cumberland
Dinwiddie -

" Franklin

Greensville

-90-

Halifax

Henry

Lunenburg
Mecklenburg Nottoway
Patrick

Pittsylvania

Prince Edward

Citi
Danville
Emporia
Martinsville

FY24 TRRC Agriculture Fund Guidelines and RFP / Page 16



Proposed new position: Senior Administrative Specialist
(Role Title & Code: General Administration Coordinator ll, 12073, Pay band 5)
Advertised at $55-67,000/yr. Targeted hiring date: February/March 2024 (to provide overlap with Ms. Knight)

T,% Core Measures for Core Responsibilities
"M Responsibilities :

Full-Time Position

{40 hrs/week)
30% | A, Commission Manage activities related to the tri-annual Commission meetings as well as committee

Meetings meetings by:

: + Securing mesfing locations, fransportation needs, accommodations, and meals.
» Negotiate contracts with vendors to meet or beat budget minimums.
« Assist in the Agenda development and preparation of informational
packets/books.
Keep Commission members abreast of any updates or changes.
Finalize all details with closing of meetings to include securing final payment.
Assists Deputy Director in tracking and reporting on Commission decisions

30% | B. Data Assists Commission staff with managing project data in SmariSimple and other
Management data management systems.

Assists Commission staff in researching project data and preparing reports

« Enters and manages data for TROF and other economic development programs

s In partnership with Commission staff, explores new or improved data
management systems -

¢ Track and provide reports on OKRs

20% | C. TROF Support | Provide tlmely support to the Deputy Director and Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund
Manager in TROF by:
¢  Working directly with localities to determine needs and providing estimated
incentives for future projects and coordinate communications and documents for
TROF incentives requests through award to close out,
« Determine when performance measures have not been met, calculate amount of
clawback, and establish collection schedule with the effected locality.
+« Communicate effectively to companies and localities the program requirements
as well as policies and procedures.
* Work with the Commission's data analyst to recommend changes to TROF
estimator.
. » Coordinate communications with the Virgina Employment Commission (VEC} to
the Commission re: employment numbers ‘and needs for the program.
» Run data received from the VEC into usable information to determine TROF
grantee's progress on performance measures.
« Communicate effectively with local Commissioners of the Revenue to receive
data and evaluate said data to determine TROF grantee § progress on

performance measures.
» Manage files, update electronic database, and coordinate and update tracking
system.
20% | D. Executive « Aids Special Assistant as needed in providing analytical, administrative, and
Adminisirative technical support to the Executive Management Team
Assistance o Assist Public Relations Director with press releases, annual repoit and other

Commission related communications
¢ Provides general office management assistance as needed

Justification: This position will take over the duties currently filled by the soon-to-be retiring Joyce
Knight who handles meeting planning, minutes, administrative duties and material production for all
Commission and committee meetings. Additionally, this position will take on TROF support and
administrative duties previously completed by Stacy Richardson and information management duties
completed by Data Director David Bringman. By consolidating these responsibilities into a single
position, these important functions can be efficiently completed and it will positon Commission staff to
operate more efficiently and undertake additional initiatives, especially around data management.

-91—



¥202/6/1 pasodold
wtuum._.wmq Sjunig) Hmm\Scuzom JUBDISISSY SJIUD.ID Emcw:om

J03pulps00) bunaan

vzoz Sulds Suunay S1UN0D) UelLIPY : 1|aduenp Ajiw3

(dwa1 | 4) 3ySiuy asAor

103281107
[puobay 15amuINos

10123110

1SHDI230S
$z0z Sulds Suiuuigag l  anioAsIuILpY J0IUSS

|puoibay uiayinos

SWIEI[|I\\ BJeS

sdded yeaes

uoRIsod pasodold -

10101 SIUILPY

13BDUDIA H0Y.L 151/D128dS S82INIES [DI2UD U S

/103231 SUOIID[3Y J1|GN [I— UAMPOOD yeles

i3]3ng uep.or

siayed enezng

uonpAouu) B Iuswdolenad

ABJaug jouolbay 104033310 a3upul4 fo 10133117 1032211 Wwpiboid Sjupio
wiy alueydsis sAaiydwnH P2IA

JONVNIL SINYYD

1032241q Aindag

eA|IS Alar
ADYINT

uasiap uaydais

NOILYHLSININGY

1UD]SISSY [0123dS

13||n4-3ueld yeuuey

1032241 anin2ax3 bunay / apod)
% 22J9wo) fo Aipjaidas Andag

sodwe) sswer
LIOISSIWIWOD) 0228G0 |

1aquia|AI-8¢
appl] ® 33JaWW0) Jo AiD]a.255

SRIEINEE D)

J0UI3A0D)

upSunoA uus|H

1Jey) |euoneziuesiQ

co_mm_EEou uolilezi|elnay uoi8ay 020eqo]

-92-



FULL COMMISSION

-93~



« In-Person Meeting»
AGENDA

FuLL COMMISSION

January 9, 2024 - 11:00 A.M.
Delta Hotels by Marriott Richmond Downtown

Kanawha Ballroom
555 East Canal Street, Richmond, VA 23219

The public may remotely participate in this meéting by accessing the following dial-in numbers: 1-434-230-0065 (toll) and
enter conference ID: _885 164 502# .

The Commission will not change the method by which it chooses to meet without providing a new meeting notice that is in
accordance with the Va. Freedom of Information Act. If problems are experienced calling in, please contact: Hannah
Franke-Fuller at (804)-894-9659 or hfranke-fuller@revitalizeva.org or Joyce Knight at (804) 894-9651.

Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Frank Ruff, Chair
Call of the Roll The Honorable James Campos, Acting Executive Director

Approval of the 10/12/23 Minutes (published on website)

Public Comment

Executive Committee The Honorable Frank Ruff, Chair

Incentives & Loans Committee The Honorable Danny Marshall, Chair
Southern Virginia Committee My, Walter “Buddy” Shelton, Chair
Southwest Virginia Committee The Honorable James “Will Morefield, Chair
Other Business Mr. Stephen Versen. Deputy Director
Adjournment

-94-



002°162'L 000°225°1  $ SIWiOoL

_ . : zziolL -
001'8Z1 000vrl  $ - pesingsig au| ‘o1d AVN funog AemonoN 8102/9/9 8r¥e
000's2 000°0%!L g } 61/81/9 Aessiuwoy Asyeq audws Ajunog uipueld 8102/5/0L 18¥¢

pasingsic]

fne . GL0Z/LLIB Ajoyiny
000'0£9 0000€9  $ - pasSINGSIC 017 Yyoalses mopieH Auiog- [esnpul [euciBay elensig-opnueg | SH0Z/SHOL z8ve
000'v8 ooo'o¥t  $| . nmmmm:ﬂm_o 071 dedfjod Auoyiny Juswdojeasq [ergsnpu] A4UNOY PSS | 6102/9/9 08¢ |1

. . n
[=2]
_ }

0082 000'SL $ . umwwmﬂ_ q O ‘fuemaig SI9JSIS UaASS YA ‘AuUnog sy 1o yai juior 6L02/08/Y yhee

_ _ BLOLL _
000'G} 000'08 $ - pesInasiq OT1 'sublsaq ebpry anig Aunog jjoe) 6L0Z/0E/ ie

. . 12/92/6 o < Auoyiny ,
000°0L2 0000z $ - pesInasid PY1 ‘daN A9 [EHISIpL| [EUOIB3Y BILBAASHI-IIAUEG 6102/9/8 elelels
009'¢E 008"y $ . nwm_h:mwo 077 ‘slBuLed [810H SUoIsioRlg 10 UMOL ‘BuaISHOEIT L20z/e/S y.9¢
00§'s¥ 005'G¥ $ | pesingsipaq ol © 071 ‘Bupsye [eubiq sieuabsy 0 AN ‘alinueq 120e/82iL vELE

! ¢ 3sINgsSIp 89 O Ayl ‘usaede Auouny
000'8y 0008 $|p 1P 8q OL _ 12 A4 [euSnpy] [EuoIBaY elenAspid-alnueg | HCOI0EY ¥S.E

yZ0z Aenuer sueo] 4041




g2le] Javewolad

BB QIUBLLIOH3] papug 10
adl Buimalnay SupayIen |palidd B0UBWIOLR DU} S3AMBS URBIAY WG| Ajaned ‘piojpeg 120Z/TE/ZT| LI0Z/TE/2T| 8102/62/T SGEE
qal E3eg asuewiopad| e1eq souewioMad papug - *oU| ‘[RUGIIRLIAIU] JOyITY Aunos ' :
Aulayles Jupayen|peliad aausuiiopad eluEAiAsSIld zzoz/og/s| LT0Z/0E/6| LT02/32/CT YEEE
E1eg 93UBUIOHS ]| E1B( 9IueloNdd [EDE] 131Us0) uMO] QY[eaH eud] YEQ
agl Buimalasy Supayien |polag saustiicpad| 911 ‘i SUIpUnod JO YieaH B ueueyang 020T/08/6| £L102/06/6| t10Z/L/TT £6EE
BIB( AOUBLLIOLIDY| BIR(] 2IUBLLIOMR papul XIENOIE BAsEU B Aunoy
Suuaies Juiayen | pouag IUBWICLID eIuRAfASTId £20T/05/9| LT0Z/0E/6| LT0Z/EL/IT SLEE
aglL Eieq JIURLLIONSS] B1BG SIUBLLIONAY papu3 vaj [Ned 38 9/2 371 slim| s0 umol ‘|Ined 18
Fupoyles Suuayles|pousd saustiopad 7Z0T/0E/6| Ltoe/ogfs| Lioz/L/eT SLEE
e/u e/u efu
i 1] duetllofisd eieg mucmE._OmLMn_ ﬂmvcm k201 mm:ngﬁ
Bulmamay BUMalABY |POLBd ACUBLUIOHSd D71 9901, uosiin SfjIAueg TEOT/OE/6|  £T0T/0Ef6| LI0T/ST/8 TPEE
: Jou 10U - ETVE] 377
00'009°€2S 00'COF'RTS 000007258 snpjuswaeday!  aouewiopad [N poLSd SIUBWIOLSd rsafojouyoa] Buy|eas oneAcuy| ¥opewoddy ozoz/ogfel f10Zf0Efe| LI07/CE/6 OrEe
mucmrr_._ctm_& EIE 9DUBLLIONAd papuz U&umLDQLOUC_ . .
0005 0003 000$ {|ng pauUzue) Fupmainay|pousd 2IVRWIONAY]  SUOFERIINILIWGD |23181( Jasung llemeze L ozoT/TEfe| £LI0T/IEfE|  L10T/1E/S COEE
ele(] SdURWIOMad| BleQ I2UBULLIOLIS papu3 .
agl Sulmanay Fuuayles|pousg souswIopad| DT “IIIA EWIPUNOd JO YA BULLL |lamaze], QTOT/TE/E| LTOZ/IE/E| LICZ/LT/Y 96TE
EIE( SVUBULIOH34| €le( JIUBWIOHSd Papul AIUDOD
Fulmainay Fupaylep|polad IUBLIOH3d -aur ‘sselo Ajajes uelg B|[jASUTHID €20Z/08/9| LI0T/TE/E|  LI0T/8/9 S6TE
BIEQ JIUBLLIONSE, BIBQ JUBLLIONA papul ) i
agt Sulmanay FuaUIRD | PONBE IIUBULICHAY [ SILTES 4G SN 0Z0Z/IE/CT| SI0T/IE/LT LI08/9/¢ 99¢E
[FEIHEEE] FEIRT1Y] papug K .
00981118 0626574 06'8LL9TS uejd juatAeday|  SauewIGHSd |N4ipOUSs BIUBLLIOMAY IT1 ‘Bjouedap PIOH|  RJEMPY SUHY 6I07/cE/9| 9icz/usfe| 9ioR/0E/B LATAS
Eje(] SouBllioNad| eieq JIUBwIoHad papul
Q9. Bupaylen Sulieylen]poliag axueLLiopag| (G 19eioad) oul BAsUIHEIN 1LY Auay TZOT/TIE/E|  gTOR/NE/E]  STOT/Y/S LLTE
SEEEE’'S 5 CE'EEER ¢ | paunbaijuzwiedad| eieqaoueuoyag papu3 F2IA4BS PUR SHRS JOA 2N|d Auoyany
SuRaYIRD I POLS aTUBULIOMA | wawde[Brsg
|elIsnpui
Aunoy jamaze] 720z/0E/5|, STOT/OE/6| STOT/Rfol|  TOIE
pasnoaxa| eyeq souRwLIONDG papug
9£'E68°5ES 00'0$ 9EE68'SES uejd JuawAedsy Bumalnay|polog AUBULIONSd UL S| 238 VR ucsARID ozozfos/e| vroT/IE/TE|  stoT/efz| | oot
00'€e9'EsT $ sloosze'sor  $ | pasnbauiuswAedall ele( sduBLULO0LAd panciddy| {umeog 1 Aroqiny .
Buayien| uosualxg!  des |ieH ¥EQ) SLASNEY| [IEH YEQ juawdolaaag
. LHTHIHa
Aunoy uoshein yZ0Z/08/9 YIOT/IE/TT]  SIOT/ST/T BEBT
SIS SO OIOI T -
paswas penedau
30 @suruLioyad
Bupoyuowt
- ueyd JuawAedas J3W J0U pepuz
agl paiepofanN|  Ioueuwwopad fng|poLiad SDUBLLIOISS 511 $13N4018 NYIHIYIVddY J1assny LT0Z/0E/9}  ¥I0Z/OE/S YT0Z/1/8 Y6
E:_._u.auoz
PAINIDXD 1w jou popu3l  Dgv o3 Auedwod Jaisis e st Sl
00'000'sTS 00°000's.$ 00°000°00TS upjd wswAeday|  shueuopsd jjnd|polad BdUBW.OLag 4] ‘Bupjonig 15807 7 1SE03 fnquaum 2T0Y/1e/E| vioT/iefe|  vioT/S/s] EEST
T :w.ﬂOI
BIEQ FIUBULIGHDY| BIR( SIURILIOU3] papuz sucissas Ayl /s[a10H anbnnog .
qgl Auagien Suptaylen|pollad aouewloyad 3A[RESID BYR)IT jOISHE HED jo3slg TZ0Z/TE/ZT| ST0T/IE/ZT| FIOL/ST/Z 0487
[FEIGEEEE] W 10U papug
00'Z65°277% 00ROV LIS Q0°000'09%S ue|d JuswAeday| soueuinpad |jnd|poliad SauBULIOLEd ] WBINnop |uNoes palety nﬁom\_ﬁmm maomxﬂm\mm YI0Z/PI/T S¥8T

rg

L smEy

S

Ly

nolddy

¥Z0Z Aenuep spoliad 80UBUWLIOUS PSPNoUCD UM SHJO¥ L SAIOY

-9~



a00'ss1°L$ 000'599°Z3 000'064'bS 665°516'512S ¥eg'l 0z s39904d Jo # 6102 Ad
000'2729°98 000'918Z% 000°90L'YS &12Z'paL'SrTs 68t ] spafold Jo # 0202 Ad
000°965'1% 000°05v$ 000'ePL LS GZeTYZTrLLS z68 i syp0loid Jo # 1Zoz A4 S
005215 1$ 00SPYS 000'PLL LS 962" LZ0'S LS o'l £ syoafosd Jo # zZ0Z AL

005'c£65

0%

005'€263

600's¥LS

006'9rLY

000°00E"LES

9lep 0] #20Z Ad - 610C Ad
spiemy 4Od L

{=12p o1 $ZOT A4

.....9"......



Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
' Financial Summary
As of November 30, 2023

TICR Fund Balance $ 225,879,038
Restricted Endowment Balance $ 75,976,441
Unrestricted Endowment Balance $ 46,109,311
Restricted Endowment Accum Interest 3 2,689,181
Unrestricted Endowment Accum Interest 3 1,629,332
Total Cash & Investments $ 352,283,302
Cash Disbursements - this month $ 460,775
Cash Disbursements - FYTD $ 5,878,681
Unobligated
Fund Balances
Education $ 1,944,429
Education-Workforce Training $ 3,527,343
Education-TAP 3 3,923,800
TROF (Deal Closing) $ 21,471,380
Southside Economic Development $ 12,965,372
Southern Va Committee $ 18,453,362
Southwest Va Committee $ 6,954,336
Rural Enérgy Innovation $ 12,000,000
Megasite Development $ 17,375,889
Lending Program $ 31,696,319
Administration $ 1,633,533
TICRC General Account 3 1,031,118
FY2024 Budget Balance $ 132,976,880
12/20/2023

_98._.



Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Cash Basis) .

REVENUES
Other Revenue (all cost codes)
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Administration
Salaries, Fringe Benefits, Per Diems
Contractual Services
Supplies and Materials
Transfer Payments
Rent, Insurance, Agency Svc Charges
Furniture and E‘quipment

As of November 30, 2023

Subtotal - Administration $ 2,947,987

Community Revitalization
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In (endowment and earnings)

CASH BALANCE, June 30, 2023
CASH BALANCE, November 30, 2023

$ 231,351,480

$ 231,351,479.55

$ 202,703,493

$ 225,879,038.16

-90-

YTD Actual
as % of Variance Favorable
FY24 Budget YTD Actual Budget (Unfavorahle)
$ - $ 406,239.54 406,239.54
$ - $ 406,239.54 $ 406,239.54
3 1,432,900 $ 552,562.19 38.6% '$ 880,337.81
237,800 77,236.00 32.5% 160,564.00
11,000 1,823.48 16.6% 9,176.52
1,045,887 0.0% 1,045,887.00
213,400 51,252.40 24.0% 162,147.60
7,000 4,348.19 62.1% 2,651.81
$ 687,222.26 23.3%  $2,260,764.74
25,700,000 5,191,458.67
$ 28,647,987 $ 5,878,680.93
$ (28,647,987) $ (5,472,441.39)
$ - $ -

12/20/2023



VIRGINIA TOBACCO
COMMISSION

- STANDING COMMITTEES

-100-



VIRGINIA TOBACCO REGION REVITALIZATION COMMISSION

Commission Committees -
{rev. 10/23)

EDUCATION COMMITTEE

Amanda Cox, Chair

The Hon. L. Louise Lucas, Vice Chair
Ms. Gretchen Clark

Mr. Joel Cunningham, Jr,

Mr. Richard T. Hite, Jr,

Ms. Sandy Ratliff

The Hon. Frank Ruff, Jr.

The Hon. Gary D. Walker

The Hon. William C. “Will” Wampler, IlI

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Hon. Frank Ruff, Jr., Chair

The Hon. James “Will” Morefield, Vice Chair
The Hon. Leslie R. “Les” Adams

Mr. Edward “Ed” Blevins

Ms. Amanda Cox

Ms. Julienne D. “Julie” Hensley

The Hon. Terry G, Kilgore

The Hon. L. Louise Lucas

The Hon. Daniel “Danny” Marshall

Mr. Walter H. “Buddy” Shelton

INCENTIVES AND L OANS COMMITTEE

The Hon. Daniel “Danny” Marshall, Chair
The Hon. Terry G. Kilgore, Vice Chair
The Hon. Leslie R. “Les” Adams

Mr. Edward “Ed” Blevins

Ms. Gretchen B. Clark :

The Honorable Stephen Cummings

The Hon. Caren Merrick :

The Hon, Joseph D. “Joe” Morrissey

The Hon. William A, “Will” Pace

The Hon. Frank Ruff, Jr.

SOUTHERN VIRGINIA COMMITTEE

Mr. Walter H. “Buddy” Shelton, Chair
Yacant, Vice Chair

The Hon. Leslie R. “Les” Adams

Mr. Joel Cunningham, Jr.

Mr. Watt R. Foster, Jr.

Mr. Richard T. Hite, Jr.

Mr. Jay D. Jennings

The Hon. L. Louise Lucas

The Hon. Daniel “Danny” Marshall-
The Hon. Caren Merrick

The Hon. Joseph D. “Joe” Morrissey
The Hon. William A. “Will” Pace
The Hon. Gary D. Walker .

SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA COMMITTEE

The Hon. James “Will” Morefield, Chair
Ms. Julienne D. “Julie” Hensley, Vice Chair
Mr. Edward “Ed” Blevins

Ms. Gretchen B. Clark

Ms. Amanda Cox

The Hon. John S. Edwards

The Hon. Terry G, Kilgore

The Hon. Matthew Lohr

The Hon. William A. “Will” Pace -

Ms. Sandy Ratliff

The Hon. William C. “Will” Wampler, I
Ms. Sarah L. Wilson

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE

~ Mr. Edward “Ed” Blevins, Chair

The Hon. Leslie R. “Les” Adams Vice Chair
Ms, Gretchen B. Clark

Ms. Julienne D. “Julie” Hensley

The Hon. Matthew Lohr

The Hon. William C. “Will” Wampler, IlI

-101-



VIRGINIA TOBACCO REGION REVITALIZATION COMMISSION
COMMISSION MEMBERS

rev, 1/24
COMMISSIONERS CITY AND STATE
Mr. Edward “Ed” Blevins Abingdon, Virginia
Ms. Gretchen B. Clark Gretna, Virginia
Ms. Amanda C. Cox Boones Mills, Virginia
The Honorable Stephen E, “Steve” Cummings | Richmond, Virginia
Secretary of Finance :
Mr. Joel Cunningham, Jr. . Halifax, Virginia
The Honorable John S. Edwards Roanoke, Virginia
Senator, 21% District
Lee “Randy” Everett Stony Creek, Virginia
Watt R. Foster, Jr. Gladys, Virginia
Ms. Julienne D. “Julie” Hensley Gate City, Virginia
Mr. Richard T. Hite, Jr. Kenbridge, Virginia
Mr. Jay D. Jennings Chase City, Virginia
The Honorable Terry G. Kilgore Gate City, Virginia -
Delegate, 1%t District
The Honorable Matthew J. “Matt” Lohr Richmond, Virginia
Secretary of Agriculture and Forestry
The Hongrable L. Louise Lucas Portsmouth, Virginia
Senator, 18" District
The Honorable Daniel “Danny” Marshall Danville, Virginia
Delegate, -4 District
The Honorable Caren Merrick Richmond, Virginia
Secretary ¢f Commerce and Trade
Arthur “Dale” Moore Altavista, V:rglnla
The Honcrable James W. “WiiP’ Morefield North Tazewell, Virginia
Delegate, 8 District
The Honorable Joseph D. “Joe” Morrissey Richmond, Virginia
Senator, 16 District
The Honozable William A. “WilP” Pace ' Chatham, Virginia
Ms. Sandy J. Ratliff ' Abingdon, Virginia
The Honorable Frank M. Ruff, Jr. - | Clarksville, Virginia
Senator, 15" District
Mr. Walter H. “Buddy” Shelton Gretna, Virginia
Delegate Otto Wachsmann (new) - | Stoney Creek, Virginia
Mr. Gary D. Walker . Charlotte Court House, Virginia
The Honorable William C. “Will? Wampler, HI Abingdon, Virginia
Delegate, 4 District :
Ms. Sarah L. Wilson ' Abingdon, Virginia
Delegate Thomas Wright, Jr. (new) Victoria, Virginia

—-102-



